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Corporate Information
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Yuen Wai Ho (Chairman)
Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chow Siu Ngor (Chairman)

Yuen Wai Ho

Lee Ka Lun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Lee Ka Lun (Chairman)

Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Chan How Chung, Victor

SECRETARIES
Company Secretary
Ng Yuen Yee

Assistant Secretaries
Appleby Services (Bermuda) Ltd.

RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE
Appleby Services (Bermuda) Ltd.

AUDITOR
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan

LEGAL ADVISERS
Baker & McKenzie
Reed Smith Richards Butler

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Suite 2601, 26/F, Sino Plaza

255-257 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2532 0088

Fax: (852) 2532 5229

Websites: http://www.aplushk.com/clients/00555rexlot/index.html
http://www.rexlot.com.hk

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd.

Canon’'s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (continued)
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CHINA OFFICES

Beijing Representation Office

30/F, Central Tower, China Overseas Plaza
8 Guanghua Dongli

Chaoyang District, Beijing

REXLot Investment (Shenzhen) Co Ltd
Room B, 30/F, Noble Center, 3 Fuzhong Road
Futian District, Shenzhen

REXLot Investment (Guangzhou) Co Ltd
Room 2002, China Mayors Plaza, 189 Tianhe Bei Road
Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd
17/F, Tiley Central Plaza, Haide No.3 Road
Nanshan District, Shenzhen

Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd
Room 3108, 31/F, Cyber Tower A

2 Zhongguancun South Avenue

Haidian District, Beijing

Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd

Room 601-605, 6/F, Block 1, Yuehai Industrial Estate
Yuehai Road, Nanhai Avenue

Nanshan District, Shenzhen

Guangzhou Latech Technology Co Ltd

Room 202-203, No.54-58, Huacui Street, Jianye Road
Tianhe District, Guangzhou
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board of directors (the “Board”) of REXLot Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to present the annual results of the Company,
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

The China lottery market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group's lottery business can be broadly divided into two divisions,
namely, System and Games Development Business (“SGDB") Division
and Distribution and Marketing Business (“DMB") Division.

Turnover of the lottery business for the year increased by 12.1%
to HK$1,804,975,000 (2010: HK$1,609,935,000), accounting for
99.8% of the total turnover. Profit before taxation arising from this
segment recorded a growth of 21.1% to HK$861,269,000 (2010:
HK$710,980,000).

Key Developments in 2011

China lottery market made a new milestone in 2011 by taking the
country’s total lottery sales beyond the RMB200 billion mark for the
first time.

In 2nd half of 2011, the Group successfully issued about HK$964.7
million convertible bonds which not only allows us to further
strengthen our financial position and capital structure, but also
increase our flexibility to pursue opportunities identified in the
China lottery market, particularly in the new electronic lottery
market. Despite the volatile and weak market sentiment during the
3rd quarter of 2011, we managed to complete the offering of the
convertible bonds at a 30% conversion premium and successfully
enhanced our corporate profile as well as attracted a group of long
term investors that will likely strengthen our shareholder base in the
future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

On the business development front, the Group made a strategic
move to expand its downstream lottery distribution operations and
established DMB Division in 2008. In the past 3 years, we have made
concerted efforts to develop our DMB Division into a leading player
by providing the most extensive distribution channels and lottery
products in China. During the year under review, our DMB Division
has completed our electronic lottery platform expansion strategy by
acquiring the controlling interests in companies which operate the
sports information and internet lottery portals in China. We acquired
these various portals to complement our existing infrastructure of
physical distribution platform as well as electronic lottery platform.
The portals have been in operation since the early 2000s and are
run by experienced teams with proven track records for over 10
years. They have been actively involved in the areas of sports events
games of Sports Lottery in the past years and are the clear leaders in
their respective Sports Lottery markets in China with large customer
base and strong partnerships with major internet entrance portals
(i.e. Alipay, Taobao, Tencent). Together, the various portals will be
integrated into our Group's electronic lottery platform and given their
high growth potential and profitability, we believe that they will make
positive contribution to the Group. The Group's strategic move to the
internet operation has not only further enhanced our lottery offerings
over a safe, reliable and comprehensive distribution platform, but
also further improved the overall profitability and financial strength of
the Group. The acquisitions mark another milestone for the Group's
DMB Division as it paves the way for us to usher in the new era of
electronic lottery powered by the internet.

The aforementioned accomplishments have demonstrated our
ongoing growth story. The Group will continue to leverage on our
leading market position, solid customer base and differentiated
services to capture synergies generated by our physical and electronic
lottery distribution channels. We believe that the new distribution
channels on the internet will accelerate the phenomenal growth of
the lottery market in China and continue to make contributions for
the good causes for the general public in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

China Lottery Market

For the full year of 2011, total lottery sales of the China lottery
market reached a new record of RMB221.6 billion (2010: RMB166.2
billion), registering a robust year-on-year growth of 33%. Welfare
Lottery accounted for about 58% (RMB127.8 billion) of total lottery
sales while Sports Lottery took up 42% (RMB93.8 billion).

In respect of Welfare Lottery, Welfare Computer Ticket Games
("CTG") accounted for about 71% of total Welfare Lottery sales;
Welfare Scratch Cards was about 16% and Video Lottery Terminals
("VLT") took about 13%.

Welfare CTG sales in 2011 was RMB90.7 billion, increased by
24% when compared with 2010. The growth of this segment was
attributed to the successful development of both national and
regional games. During the year, Dual Colour Ball, the flagship
national Welfare CTG accounting for more than half of total Welfare
CTG sales, created the largest lottery prize in history amounted to
RMB565 million. While the large lotto jackpot of national game was
appealing to lottery consumers, the growing number of regional
games emerged in different provinces featuring wide variety of prizes
and high frequency of drawings also managed to attract lottery sales.

Welfare Scratch Cards sales reached RMB20 billion, representing an
increase of 39% over 2010. The successful marketing campaigns
timely aligned to the Chinese festivals and holidays as well as
increasing popularity of high face value tickets were able to improve
the sales of lottery tickets.

VLT sales up by 83% and reached RMB17 billion by maintaining a

strong growth momentum.

On Sports Lottery side, Sports CTG accounted for about 79% of total
Sports Lottery sales and Sports Scratch Cards was about 21%.

Sales of Sports CTG, including Single Match Games (“SMG"),
increased by 39% to approximately RMB73.8 billion. While the
traditional lotto and number games maintained a healthy growth
during the year, the sales of Sports Events Lottery also contributed
to the growth of this segment. In terms of Sports Events Lottery, the
sales of SMG increased by 103% year-on-year to RMB12.4 billion,
accounting for about 57% of the total sales of Sports Events Lottery.
Against a backdrop of the high base effect due to the World Cup
in 2010 and the temporary lockout of NBA (National Basketball
Association) during the 4th quarter of 2011, SMG still topped the
sales league of Sports Lottery in terms of the growth rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Sports Scratch Cards sales maintained a healthy growth of 21% to
RMB20 billion which was attributed to the successful launch of new
tickets, for example the NBA series, as well as the new highest face
value ticket of RMB30 with increased top prize.

System and Games Development Business

The Group’s SGDB Division is an active participant in the provision
of lottery systems and specialized equipments for both CTG and
Scratch Cards products in China. During the year under review, the
aforementioned upstream and midstream lottery operations continued
to benefit from the strong performance of the China lottery market
and contributed meaningful earnings and cash flow to the Group.

Welfare CTG Business

The Group’s SGDB Division, through Shenzhen Sinodata Technology
Co Ltd (“Sinodata”), participates in the Welfare CTG business in
China. Sinodata, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the
leading lottery system and specialized equipment supplier for the
Welfare CTG market in China.

During the year under review, Sinodata provided its professional
services to 16 lottery provinces in China and successfully maintained
its market share. Welfare CTG continued to account for the lion’s
share of China lottery market through the well developed lottery
product portfolio principally comprises national games with appealing
jackpot and fast growing regional games offering entertaining lottery
experience.

Capitalizing on its excellent track records and outstanding
technologies in the field of lottery system and specialized equipment,
Sinodata is well prepared to seize the emerging opportunities to
further expand its business coverage in China.

Welfare Scratch Cards Business

For the full year of 2011, sales of Welfare Scratch Cards registered
a strong growth of 39% to RMB20 billion due to the successful
marketing campaigns organised during Chinese festivals and holidays.
The Group’s SGDB Division benefited from the strong market
performance through its participation in scratch card operations
including printing and validation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group has jointly controlled interests, through Beijing Guard
Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”), in Welfare Scratch Cards
validation services in China. Guard Libang is a 50:50 joint venture
with Scientific Games Corporation (“Scientific Games”), the world's
leading instant lottery system and validation company. Our strategic
partnership with Scientific Games will continue to deliver its expertise
and technological know-how to the Scratch Cards market in China.

Our SGDB Division also involves in Scratch Cards printing business.
Through a cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing
House, one of the three entities authorized to print for the Welfare
Scratch Cards programs, the Group has been contributing to the
development of Welfare Scratch Cards in China. During the period
under review, an enhancement program aimed to increase the
printing capacity and improve printing technology of our printing
press located at Shijiazhuang was completed. The world-class printing
facilities which are now the most advance printing press in China,
have come into commercial operation in August 2011 after the
successful installation followed by fine-tuning of system and labour
training. With our commercial operating capacity increased to 2-3
billion tickets per year, we believe our market share will gradually
improve in future.

Sports CTG Business

The Group’s Sports CTG business involves the sales of CTG machines
to provincial Sports Lottery Centres across China serving the needs of
traditional CTG segment and supporting the development of SMG.
During the year under review, machine replacement demand started
off slow but gradually improved as the year progressed. We expect
the momentum will sustain in this year as demand recovers in the new
replacement cycle ahead.

Distribution and Marketing Business

The Group’s DMB Division has successfully evolved from a mere
physical distribution network under the cooperation distribution
model into a comprehensive distribution platform covering most type
of lottery products by means of physical and electronic channels. It
is our long-term initiative to dedicate focused efforts to reach out
to lottery consumers in China and address their needs directly with
our reliable and innovative lottery services. During the year under
review, the DMB Division continued to make significant progress and
committed to consolidating its physical lottery distribution network
and electronic lottery distribution platform and so to strengthen the
Group's position as a major participant in the downstream lottery
operations in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Cooperation Distribution Business

Under the cooperative model, we focus on building our physical
lottery distribution network with channel partners, entities and
organizations that already had a widely diversified and recognized
sales network located in selected prime locations in China. Our
channel partners principally comprise chains of convenience store
and supermarket, grocery and pharmacy chains, gasoline stations
and post offices. The Group will continue to benefit from this model
and success as a dominant lottery distributor over physical channels.
During the year under review, the operating performance of the
Point-of-Sales continued to improve.

Single Match Games Business

The Group's strategy in SMG business is to establish physical shops
for marketing and recruit members, and with 24-hours call center and
other electronic distribution platforms to support business operations.
We are very excited by the acquisitions of the leading lottery portals
which have been serving as the major source of lottery information
and a convenience electronic gateway for most of the SMG players
to play lottery in the market. After the acquisitions, we have been
focusing on the platform and back-end system integration works of
the electronic lottery distribution platform for the whole group, and
we expect the integration will be completed by end of 1st quarter
of 2012. By focusing on our strategy to construct a comprehensive
lottery platform comprises franchise store, call center and online
platform for SMG, the Group is well positioned to capture the
opportunities provided by the market growth and benefit from the
synergies generated from our operating model.

We believe the development of SMG is still in its infancy stage and
there is significant opportunity in front of us. We anticipate that
SMG will eventually become the flagship sports events lottery and
the fastest growing lottery game in the coming years due to the
positive impacts from the introduction of electronic lottery distribution
channels and new play types.

Although SMG is a relatively new segment in China lottery market,
it has demonstrated tremendous growth potential. For the full year
of 2011, SMG sales increased by 103% to RMB12.4 billion when
compared with 2010. We expect to see a strengthening trend in SMG
growth while it remains in the early stage of development. We are
confident that SMG represents one of the growth drivers for us.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Mobile Lottery Business and Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
Our Mobile SMS Platform provides latest lottery information to
customers and allows them to purchase CTG tickets by using SMS
text messaging. This platform managed to attract an impressive
growth of subscribers during the year as we made significant progress
deepening our penetration into existing provinces in China.

Following the issuance of Interim Measures for the Administration of
Telephone Lottery Sales in October 2010, we witnessed very positive
developments on the Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform (“Mobile
ELP”). In May 2011, the Group was appointed as the service provider
of Mobile ELP for Liaoning Welfare Lottery and conducted a pilot
testing for this platform. The pilot testing for Welfare Lottery in
Liaoning has been completed and is subject to further review by
lottery authorities prior to the approval of commercial launch. We are
confident and optimistic about the prospect of Mobile ELP and we
expect Mobile ELP could achieve significant breakthrough in 2012.

Financial Business

During the year under review, turnover of the financial business
decreased by 5.5% to HK$4,152,000 (2010: HK$4,393,000),
accounting for 0.2% of the total turnover and recorded segment loss
of HK$2,493,000 (2010: HK$4,875,000). The Group will continue
to divest from its non-core business and focus on the promising
core lottery operations. Active measures have been taken to look
for opportunities in releasing further resources from this business
segment.

Outlook

China lottery market kicked off its development in the “Twelfth Five-
Year Plan” period with record RMB221.6 billion lottery sales in 2011.
We are very positive on the outlook of the China lottery market and
we believe it will maintain a strong growth momentum in the coming
few years. We believe 2012 will be another fruitful year for the Group
to seize the emerging opportunities by adapting to the evolving
landscape of China lottery market.

In January 2012, the lottery authorities had issued the Detailed Rules
for Implementation of Regulation on Lottery Management (”Detailed
Rules”) which came into effect on 1 March 2012. The Detailed
Rules are formulated based on the regulating policies and practices
codified in the Regulation on Lottery Management, which came into
effect on 1 July 2009, in order to provide a detailed guidance on the
authoritative standards and principles of lottery management and
operation in China. This clearly illustrates that the fair and regulated
market environment promoted by the lottery authorities is highly
conducive to the development of a sustainable and healthy lottery
market.

EEEBENWKRIN (&)

FHYERBRIHETHETA
RAOFRENT & AEFRUBRFOLRAN &
oA EAR A BE BT E - B AR AES AT E
RALD LHBEAERE BT ARFARSAER
FREEE

BIERHEEVEERETHEI R _Z—FF+A
Bk AEERRBTFREFREFE ([FTHET
FEFRDIEFTEBNER- R _FT——FAA K
SEEREEREERNEENTRETEETY RS
HER XREFEETAMTE RREENREF
FENAHGAICRTR GEERBE—TEER
BERERRABEEFE RMEFREFRETEN
FISABEBREE PEFREFHETARN_ZT
— T FRI AR -

EAE X

REBEFAN @REBTHEEER LS5 5%E
4,152,000/ (=& —Z 4 : 4,393,000 7T) " 1542
EHTH0.2%  WEK1E 5 B E 182,493,000 L (=&
— T4 14,875,000/ 7T ) o AN 5 [ 15 4 4B R BE SR A0
X% WASITRASHEBNZRLERER SR,
MERRERERUAS KBS ELER D PE— R
WEZER-

RE
TREETSR_E-—FHEAR®K2,216ETA
RENHEER AT _0DRE BRNERIBEFAT
B-RMETEEETSNARAREL BETS
M PRERBBENRRBFEEHE - RMBE_-Z
——FRegRn—HEERF AEETIERSPEY
R 5 EAE T BRI T E R E S -

—E-CF A REHERTT [REEEBKRD
BiEAmA ] (B YeERT——F=A—
BAEM-BERAMDBEBEZREREGN (KT H
FLA-RERRENERBEMBIE §ERT
B RERMEENENRAFMES - EEEA
THERBEMSKOAT ERBNMEREHTE
MGAFEIEFENERBERM-

Annual Report 2011 —Z——44F%f 11



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group shares the same view with regulators and consumers on
the enforcement against illegal lotteries and malpractices in lottery
market. With the Detailed Rules enacted, China lottery market is
poised for a consolidation in the fragmented lottery downstream and
such process will expedite implementation of the licensing regime for
electronic lottery distribution channels. As a major participant in the
industry, we believe we will benefit from the consolidation and further
strengthen our leading position in the lottery market.

Looking ahead, China lottery market will undergo a significant change
over the lottery distribution channels characterized by the rise of
electronic distribution channels, specifically mobile phone and the
internet. We view this as a critical moment in the history of China
lottery market amid the convergence of traditional physical sales
network and innovative electronic distribution channels.

In light of such development, we witness a fundamental change to
the underlying structure of the stratified lottery consumers as their
purchasing capacities, habits and motivations vary among each other.
While the traditional physical lottery channels and retailers are best
at providing consumer satisfaction by acquiring knowledge about
customers and approaching them in their everyday life, the electronic
lottery channels use technology in supporting the distribution of
lottery products without the constraints of time and space. Such
differentiated demand constitutes a brand new segment of customer
base mainly consists of white collar and youths who possess stronger
spending power on lotteries and have great desire to play lottery
anytime and anywhere. It is believed that this new segment of
customer will contribute a quantum leap growth for the industry.
After years of development, the Group is now in the best position to
capture this growth and market opportunities. Our strategic efforts in
transforming our DMB Division into a diversified lottery distribution
channel show our determinations to serve and capture this important
customer segment of the market. The DMB Division has already made
significant contribution to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In terms of product development, the Group has been working
closely with international games design and lottery companies to
develop related lottery products like electronic Scratch Card and
high frequency games for the Mobile ELP. The Mobile ELP will not
only benefit lottery consumers by allowing lottery customers to play
lotteries, anytime, anywhere through a cost effective and secure
channel; it also opens up a unique opportunity for us to develop and
introduce new games that are not available on physical platform.
We foresee that the distinctive characteristics of Mobile ELP will
encourage an exponential proliferation among the lottery fans. As
our Mobile ELP is prepared to commence its commercial operation in
2012, we are confident that the Mobile ELP is on the verge of great
success in making meaningful contribution to the Group's earnings.

Meanwhile, we also trust SMG will substantially benefit from the
convergence of distribution channels and becomes one of the key
growth drivers to the market as well as our operations in future.
As we are the major player in the industry and have developed
a comprehensive distribution platform for SMG, we foresee this
business will become one of our largest earnings contributors in the
coming years.

In future, the Group will continue to focus on maximizing the
synergies of our key significant initiatives, which include the
integration of our physical and electronic lottery distribution channels
as a centerpiece of our strategic development this year. After the
completion of our electronic lottery platform expansion strategy by
acquiring the various portals, we distinguished ourselves in the lottery
industry with the most extensive distribution channels and lottery
products. Our DMB Division will continue to excel and act as a key
growth driver of our revenue growth. The evolution of the innovative
lottery distribution methods will open up immense opportunities for
the lottery market to grow significantly. The Group is excited by these
enormous opportunities to contribute our part in the transformation
of China lottery market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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As a major participant in China’s Lottery industry, we are not only
confident and optimistic about the future prospects of our Group, but
are also confident that the Welfare and Sports Lotteries in China will
continue to make significant contributions for the good causes which
benefit the general public in China. We believe the solid foundation
of our business will enable the Group to capitalize on the evolution
underway and present a promising outlook on our earnings and cash
flow prospect. Keeping abreast of the ever-evolving market and being
market-oriented, we will continue our strategic efforts on initiatives
that further leverage our existing and growing lottery infrastructure
to enhance the Group’s long-term growth prospect. Our commitment
to generate and enhance the shareholder value will be reflected in
a gradually increasing earnings payout through dividend payout and
execution of our planned share repurchase program.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$1,809,127,000 (2010: HK$1,614,328,000),
representing an increase of 12.1% over that of the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's lottery business
in China which achieved a turnover of HK$1,804,975,000 (2010:
HK$1,609,935,000).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year was
HK$723,452,000 (2010: HK$636,016,000). The earnings per share
was 9.29 cents (2010: 8.26 cents). Fully diluted earnings per share
was 9.29 cents (2010: 8.23 cents).

The Board recommended a final dividend of 0.73 HK cent per share
(2010: 0.56 HK cent per share). Together with the paid interim
dividend of 0.48 HK cent per share (2010: 0.35 HK cent per share),
the Group's total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounts to 1.21 HK cent per share (2010: 0.91 HK cent per share).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2011, the Group's total equity amounted to
HK$4,536,814,000 as compared to HK$3,774,108,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had cash reserves of approximately
HK$489,018,000 (2010: HK$294,214,000), which included
approximately HK$12,704,000 (2010: HK$14,687,000) of clients’
funds that were kept in designated segregated bank accounts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 was 19.62% (2010:
2.95%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the total
borrowings including convertible bonds, obligation under a finance
lease and bank borrowings of approximately HK$890,222,000 by
the amount of shareholders’ equity. The liquidity ratio of the Group,
represented by a ratio between current assets over current liabilities,
was 867% (2010: 738%).

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2011 of HK$58,927,000 (2010: HK$111,466,000). The borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi and interest bearing at prevailing
commercial lending rates. The Group’s land and building and
accounts receivable were pledged to secure the bank borrowings. We
expect that all these borrowings will be repaid by internal generated
funds.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
requirements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2011, the Group's land and building with
total market value of approximately HK$76,090,000 (2010:
HK$62,090,000) and the Group's bank deposits of HK$10,976,000
(2010: HK$45,302,000) and accounts receivable of HK$21,678,000
(2010: HK$20,766,000) were pledged to banks to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group. At 31 December 2011, the Group's
listed investment belonging to clients with total market value of
approximately HK$2,249,000 (2010: HK$7,322,000) was pledged to a
bank to secure the undrawn banking facilities.

Share Capital

33,500,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted
during the year upon exercise of share options granted by the
Company.

48,450,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were repurchased by the
Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company's
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Issue of the Convertible Bonds

On 21 September 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited as
the lead manager whereby the Company agreed to issue up to
HK$1,040,200,000 in aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible
bonds due 2016 (the “Bonds”) at the issue price of 100% of the
principal amount thereof. The Bonds shall, upon conversion, entitle
the holders thereof to subscribe for the shares of HK$0.01 each (the
“Shares”) of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.6175
per Share.

The total issue size of the Bonds was HK$964,700,000 in principal

amount, comprising:

1) Firm Bonds of HK$816,900,000 in principal amount issued on
28 September 2011;

2)  Exercised Option Bonds of HK$70,000,000 in principal amount
issued on 7 November 2011; and

3)  VC Placed Bonds of HK$77,800,000 in principal amount issued
on 28 November 2011.

The total gross proceeds from the issue of the Bonds were
HK$964,700,000, which shall be used as general working capital of
the Group and pursuing future opportunities identified in the lottery
market in China, particularly in the new electronic lottery market.

The Bonds are currently listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. Details of the issue of the Bonds and the principal
terms thereof are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 22
September 2011, 28 September 2011, 28 October 2011, 7 November
2011 and 28 November 2011 respectively, and the Company’s circular
dated 5 November 2011.

There was no movement in the Bonds since issuance and during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Subsequent to the year end date, conversion rights attached to the
Bonds of HK$427,900,000 in principal amount have been exercised by
the holders of the Bonds at the initial conversion price of HK$0.6175
per Share and accordingly 692,955,465 Shares were issued.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate
Risk

The Group’'s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The Group
did not enter into any foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against exchange rates fluctuations. Foreign exchange risk arising
from the normal course of operations is considered to be minimal and
the management will closely monitor the fluctuation in the currency
and take appropriate actions when condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group
and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 1,551 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual's
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

The Group will continue to emphasise on staff training and total
quality management to better prepare its staff for the upcoming
changes and challenges in the market and industry.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to
all our shareholders, business partners and professional advisors for
their support throughout the year, and to our management and staff
for their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

EEEBENWKRIN (&)

BB R E by & R R A B R 8 2 LR

AEBZEE ABERRGTENBTHARKER
H-E—MREBBRED HNERBRBHM WAKEL
RIS SMNEEEIA W AN IMNERE) - BIRE
EYERIMNERE YN AEFERRIVEETH -

AR E R 77 H > i A B S RIR R R s
K - AR B BAEAE RN R -

ERBBREENEQR
BE-Z——F+-A=+—"BULFE AEELE
EAERRBROEHNBAR-

ANER
RZE——F+-A=+—R AEEHKAF1,551%
’EE-

FEFITEZREFNEIZRBEREREETEESTM -

BREAMESIN AEETERARERERT RER
BTXRBANAERRERZHMEBIEA LB BHE-

AEEREESERETIRIREAMEER 8T

b {E 67 019 S 4 + T 01095 17 3 o R A0 8 8 T2 9
e

FABRREFSEROBHEBAR EBBHLE
EERANAFE B2 THEEERE TTH
REAEBEBZOTIERRHFTE -

REEFS

HITEF
PR £

BB ZET—ZF#=RA=+hH

Annual Report 2011 =& ——44Fif 17



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEEBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 4 July 2002. Mr Chan is responsible
for the strategic development and overall operations of the Group.
He holds a LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant.
He has over 25 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree of arts from
the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company,
he has been the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an

international manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 52, obtained a master in business administration
from the University of Bath in England in 1988. Mr Yuen is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
& Administrators. Mr Yuen has more than 25 years of experience
in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were working in
multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a firm of
certified public accountants.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 56, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr
Chow graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981
with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an honors
degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in England in 1987.
Mr Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice since then. Currently,
Mr Chow is a Partner of King & Wood Mallesons, Solicitors. Mr Chow
also serves as an independent non-executive director of CCT Tech
International Limited and a non-executive director of China Gamma
Group Limited, both are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENEREEZEAEREE (&)

LEE Ka Lun, aged 57, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in UK. Mr Lee has over 25 years
experience in banking and auditing. He had been the Deputy Chief
Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and Regional
Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations in Asia
for over 15 years and has extensive experience on corporate banking,
private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and general
management. Mr Lee also serves as an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong namely Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and Yuexiu Property
Company Limited. Mr Lee was an independent non-executive director
of Denway Motors Limited, a company which had been withdrawn
its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited after
privatization in August 2010, from 30 June 1999 to 26 August 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Woo has over 14 years of
experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 42, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 18 years of experience in the field
of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 39, is the Director - Corporate Development
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms Yau has over 15 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong
listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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Monogement for Lottery Business

FTEEXEKRKEEB AR

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 42, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets) of the Group. Mr Zhang graduated
from the Peking University with a bachelor degree of arts. He has over
15 years experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 50, is the general manager of Beijing Guard
Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”). He joined Guard Libang
since 2004. Mr Wang graduated from the Hunan University with
a master degree in Business Administration. Prior to joining Guard
Libang, he was appointed as vice president of China Southern Airlines
Power Machinery Company in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He
specialized in large scale operation management and international
venture, especially in nationwide marketing management. He was the
general manager of Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China
between 2000 to 2003.

XU Sifan, aged 53, is the consultant of REXLot Investment (Shenzhen)
Co Ltd. Mr Xu is an engineer, registered architect and holds a MBA
degree. He was formerly the official engineer and the principal
of Jiangxi Jingde Residential Design Institute, deputy manager of
Jingdezhengshi Zhongkian Gongcheng Jianshe Bangongshi and
deputy chief commander of Jiangxi Jingde Airport Engineering Work.
He has years of extensive experience in the lottery industry in China,
lottery development strategy, operational management, supplier

management, marketing and customer service.

ZHAO Xuejun, aged 46, is a director of Shenzhen Sinodata
Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”) and is responsible for the new
business development especially in paperless lottery platform. Mr
Zhao holds a M.Sc. and a Ph.D degree of photoelectric equipment
and mechanical engineering from Chongging University. He joined
Sinodata in 1998 and has been engaged in the research and
development and project management work on lottery system
solutions, and equipment as well as lottery games for long time.
He has led the planning and implementation of issuance and
administration system of Computer Ticket Games in welfare lottery
for 16 provinces in China and has extensive experience in lottery
development strategy, technology R&D and corporate management.
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Management for Loﬂery Business (continued)

ZHU Yi, aged 45, is a director and the deputy general manager
of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd and is in charge of the
marketing functions. He graduated from Chongqing University with
a bachelor degree of Electrical Engineering. Since 1993, Mr Zhu has
been working in the lottery industry of China. He has long been
engaged in the research and development of the lottery market, and
is responsible for the sales and marketing of the Computer Ticket
Games project of more than ten provinces in China. He has extensive
experience and has outstanding achievements in anticipating the
development trend of the lottery industry, capturing marketing
opportunities and market operation.

LI Xue Jun, aged 39, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, and is in charge of technical matters.
He graduated from Chongging University in the department of
photoelectric equipment and mechanical engineering with a master
degree in Engineering. Mr Li has been responsible for the planning
and development of the lottery issue and management system. He
has completed the implementation of the technological solutions
and engineering tasks of the Computer Ticket Games issue and
management system in 16 provinces in China, with which he was
awarded the prize of "Excellent New Product” of the Guangdong
Province and a number of national patents. With extensive experience
in the planning of total lottery solutions and the development and
implementation of relevant products, he has exceptional insights
into and practical experience of the application of relevant lottery
technologies and their development prospects.

JIANG Libin, aged 39, is the general manager of Guangzhou
Latech Technology Co Ltd (“Guangzhou Latech”). Mr Jiang joined
Guangzhou Latech since 2000 and has extensive experience in
mechanical and electronic engineering research and related business
operations. He graduated from the faculty of power control in Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics.

QIAO Jin, aged 43, is the general manager of Shenzhen Kingsail
Software Tech Co Ltd. Mr Qiao graduated from Chongging
University and holds a M.Sc. degree from the Department of
Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from the School of
Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of experience in
the field of information technology and engineering, specializing in
comprehensive information system application.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

FEEBEEAE (&)

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 48, the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing
Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the
overall management of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Tsang holds
a master degree in Business Administration from Massey University
in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C Security Printing Company
Limited for around 20 years and was experienced in security printing.
He was formerly the general manager of Hong Kong and Dongguan
plants of RR Donnelley, an international printing firm.

ZHONG Wou, aged 49, is the Chief Operating Officer of Beijing Xinan
Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
operation of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Zhong graduated
from Beijing University of Aeronautics & Astronautics — School of
Economics and Management, with a master degree of business
administration. He has over 10 years of experience in product
development and logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 47, is the general manager of Beijing
Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
management of the sales of lottery tickets. Mr Tung holds a
master degree in Business Administration from the The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of experience in sales &
marketing and management and has thorough understanding to the
Chinese market.

LI Yong Zhong, aged 43, is the general manager of Elottery Vision
(Beijing) Technology Co Ltd (“Elottery Vision”). Mr Li graduated
from Wuhan University with a bachelor degree of computer
and has completed the Executive Development Program from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. He has
extensive experience in research and development and engineering
management in the field of telecommunication and has outstanding
achievements in technology development and management, operating
platform development and standardization management of Elottery
Vision.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate

governance practices as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the Code throughout the accounting
period covered by this report except in certain circumstances which
are provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors,
with two Executive Directors namely Mr Chan How Chung, Victor and
Mr Boo Chun Lon and three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr Lee Ka Lun. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 19.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company confirmed with all Independent Non-
executive Directors as to their independence with reference to the
factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulating of the
Group’s overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, preparing and approving financial
statements, recommendation of the Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policy and financial matters.
The Board also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to
the management for the day-to-day operation and administration
functions of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TREREE (&)

There were four Board meetings held for the year ended 31 December
2011. The following was an attendance record of the Board meetings
held by the Board during the year:

Executive Directors HITEF

Chan How Chung, Victor fR 2 B2

Boo Chun Lon AR U BE
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TEFE
Yuen Wai Ho B ig =

Chow Siu Ngor /N E

Lee Ka Lun TR

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive Officer. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities
of a Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer are currently held
by separate individuals with written guidelines for the division of
responsibilities with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group's business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of a
Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive Officer if candidates
with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005. It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr Chow Siu Ngor (as Chairman), Mr Yuen Wai Ho
and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior

management;

2. To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management;

3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by

reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

24 REXLot Holdings Limited 25/ #4128 B R A7

HE-Z-—FT-A=t-ALFE EFELS
AMRERE R U TAERERTARIT2ES
B2 R

4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
3/4 75%
3/4 75%

EERITHAR

AABB AL EEFRITHAE - AT RERES
EEEEAAKBEFLLENAREERESIUA
HEn ERROTBREHZETEZRBREMLRAIHE
TZEBMALTREEHERNEENEEIESIEE-

ARABHBEERDSAEBOEERRBZRY LE
BRAEERNMLRANIDEABEEERE T A
B RBEREROAEDRETEEE TR RITRAE
AT -

FHEES
FMEREeR —TZRFNAA-_T=AKZ BAlH
—EBUFRNTESAR BEHIERE (XF)

FMZESMEIEZRBMT
1. BREBEARAREFRSREEENABEHFNZ
BEREBEAETSEHEBER

2. BEAEENEFENUHNEZRBATESERSAE
EENSEHMTR:

3. SEFFETHREMATEERRE URE
RiERERBBEMS



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

4. To review and approve the compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office;

5.  To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors; and

6. To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

There was one Remuneration Committee meeting held for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The following was an attendance record of

the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year:

Remuneration Committee Members

Chow Siu Ngor %B AN J?a
Yuen Wai Ho B i8 =
Lee Ka Lun R

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2011 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr
Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. To review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group; and

2. To review the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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TEEBRE (&)

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2011. The following was an attendance record of the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Audit Committee Members

Yuen Wai Ho B8 =
Chow Siu Ngor N E
Lee Ka Lun TR

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Company.

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), as the
Group's external auditor for 2012 and that the resolution shall be put
forth for the shareholders of the Company to consider and approve at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), for statutory audit and other services were approximately
HK$2,700,000 and HK$261,000 respectively. The non-statutory audit
services mainly consist of due diligent review.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not formed Nomination Committee during the
accounting period. According to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
laws"”), the Company may from time to time in general meeting by
ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Board also has the power
to appoint any person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board and such appointment shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012.
It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Lee Ka Lun (as Chairman), Mr Yuen Wai Ho and Mr Chow
Siu Ngor and one Executive Director namely Mr Chan How Chung,
Victor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has adopted

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year, in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except that Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Currently the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
at the Company’s annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on page 39.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation
compliance and risk management.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are principally engaged in (i)
lottery system and games design business; distribution and marketing
of lottery products; and (ii) financial business.

JOINT VENTURE AND SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s joint venture and principal subsidiaries
are set out in notes 23 and 52 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 41 to 159.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board declared an interim dividend of 0.48 HK cent per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 which was paid on 31
October 2011. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the payment of a final dividend of 0.73 HK cent per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 payable on or around
Tuesday, 31 July 2012 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the Company’s register of members at the close of business
on Thursday, 28 June 2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 27 June 2012 to Thursday, 28 June 2012, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 26 June 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are

set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group made
approximately 18% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 4%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 17% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 6%.

None of the Directors, or any of their associates or any other
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr Boo Chun Lon
and Mr Chow Siu Ngor shall respectively retire and are eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Boo and
Mr Chow offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the Directors’ interests in contracts are set out in note 49 to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”)
and underlying Shares in the Company

EEC2RBEN
RENEEHZIRREFAS LEENER EEH
EE RN A ol E AR AT B A B AT S AR BE B (—
RO ERRERR SN RIS BER — F AR L 2 R FE R IR 7%
BHo

EEfheEs
EFEANEEZ FIEHNM B HRRM T4 -

BEXPREBEEIN KRR HERQF HREHE
B 8 2y B o EL AR (AT Y /B8 R R AE SF AR B S AR F B R AE ]
BE BEIVEMNESRETRAEA R 2 H i
EEAH-

EERIETBRABZESR
RIB——F+-A=1T—RH EERIEBTKRASR
REEZBEALRARRZEOTHREREEZES R
HEGRD (TEFRMEGED]) E352EFHL AR
RAFEZHRMEZERIRE  HBRFEFLETRIA
HERRBLBEEMARIMERARE ([BRM])
ZRERIRBMT

RAATBREECOIBTEER (RG] REAR
BZER

Number of
Number of underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total issued share capital
i
EEpg EEME FERHEE HEROHE @t HERTREARIL
Chan How Chung, Victor  Interests of controlled 1,198,805,635 125,991,902 1,324,797,537 17.09%
RER corporation (Note A) (Note B)
REH AR ER (HritA) (HiitB)
Notes: B

A. Among these shares, 1,098,000,000 Shares are held by Keen Start
Limited and 100,805,635 Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation.
Both Keen Start Limited and Kingly Profits Corporation are indirectly
wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor.

B. Kingly Profits Corporation is deemed to be interested in 125,991,902
underlying Shares to be derived from the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$77,800,000 issued by the Company on 28
November 2011 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.6175 per share.

3 0 REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

A REZZERMF - 1,098,000,0000% f% 15 fAKeen Start
Limited#F & % 100,805,635 % 13 HHKingly Profits
Corporation#¥ A  Keen Start Limited &Kingly Profits
CorporationtJ AR Z B Sc £ME 2 AW A ©

B.  Kingly Profits Corporation## 1% /125,991,902 % 18 &
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the

Directors or chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 November 2002 (the
"Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to executives and employees of the Group and other persons
who have made a contribution to the Group as incentives and/or
rewards for their contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of
the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company may at any time
seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such
schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive
Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company's shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme will
expire on 22 November 2012.

At 31 December 2011, no Director had any interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2011, 229,000,000 number of share options were granted
under the Scheme. The closing prices of the Shares on 16 June
2011 and 7 November 2011, being the trading dates immediately
before the dates of offer to grant of such options were HK$0.73 and
HK$0.57 respectively. The total number of Shares available for issue
upon exercise of the options outstanding under the Scheme was
392,000,000 Shares (representing 4.62% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of this report).

The fair value of options granted during the year as determined by an
independent third party valuer using a Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model was approximately HK$12,007,000. Key assumptions used in
the valuation of the options granted were as follows:

Date of offer £ A E
Date of acceptance B A A
Expected volatility of share price % & 78 B 18

Risk free rate of interest = B g I R

Expected option life (in years) TEHARE AR R BAPR (3R RT)
Expected dividend yield TEHRRR B &

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous year.

3 2 REXLot Holdings Limited 25/ #4128 B R A7
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ZEBEITRAZ01%HEMEMLS5,000,000%8 T2 #
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BERETEHSHEFTEIRET ERLBRER
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RZE——F+-A=+—B EFVETMAIRE
AARRMDOERERR - REZTE EHE-T
——F+ZA=+—HB1FE"  229,000,00017 & %
EERH - BOR-_ZE—FNA+AAAR=-T——
F+—AtR HEERHLEEREZAAMAOR
SHEZWHEN B AE0.738 T K0.578 T - BIE %At
Bl WA RIT RS AR AT AL EIT RO BR (D AR 2K
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462%) °

RERRB 2 BREZ A RERBILE =77 [ EAER
FR 05— &F MK B E B R AL TE /54912,007,000
AL -MARHBREETHERARABZIERR
LA

17 June 2011 17 June 2011 8 November
2011

—ET——F —E——F —E——4F
ANA+T+H ANA++tH +—ANR
20 June 2011 4 July 2011 23 November
2011

—T——%F —ET——%F —E——%F
NAZ+H +tAmMA +—A=+=H
41.935% 41.529% 49.221%

0.10% -0.12% 0.07% - 0.09% 0.14% -0.15%

0.25-0.50 0.25-10.50 0.25-0.50

1.42% 1.42% 2%

HHRBIDRBARBDEFZREELKEREE -
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The movements in share options granted under the Scheme during RARERNGRZTE AR ERE 2 ZESHIT
the year are shown below:

Number of options
BRE#A
Transferred ~ Transferred
from other to other
At Granted category category Exercised Lapsed At Date of Exercise
Category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December offer to price  Exercisable
participant 2011 the year the year the year the year the year 2011 grant options per Share  period
RZg--% FRERA FRERE RZg--F ERE
SEALES -A-f ERRE EfbER AR ERR FREY tZR=t-8 REAE  SRORE EH
(HKS)
(A7)
Employees 157,000,000 - 22,000,000° - (9,000,000¢ - 170,000,000 08/12/2009 0.900  16/12/2009 -
&8 071212012
17,500,000 - - - (10,500,000¢ - 7,000,000 301092010 0740 04/1012010 -
29/092012
- 110,000,000 - - (14,000,000¢ - 96,000,000 17/06/2011 0734 200612011 -
16/06/2013
- 119,000,000 - - - - 119,000,000 08/1172011 055 23112011 -
071172013
Other eligible 22,000,000 - - (22,000,000 - - - 08/12/2009 0.900  16/12/2009 -
participants 071212012
EfaBRSEAL
Total 45t 196,500,000 229,000,000 22,000,000 (22,000,000 (33,500,000) - 392,000,000
Remarks: it
1 Such share options were re-classified from the category of “Other eligible 1 ARAMSEATHBUEY ZEERERFANHH
participants” to “Employees” during the year as a result of the change of tEERBEAL| —BEMS>EZEEE] -
title of the relevant participant.
2 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 2 ZEEREETEZBA RO Z2METHRTES
date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.887. 0.887# 7T °
3 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 3 ZEEREETEZBA RO MEFHETESR
date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.870. 0.8707 7T ©
4 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 4 ZEEREETEZBA RO Z2METHRTES
date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.741. 0.741% 7T °
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ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in businesses that are considered to compete or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

NEERB

BEROSES 2L2H
BEXPIREEIN AAR HIFERLAF - HRAKHE
Bt B8 A RIS E AT (] fH /B8 A RIS FF ) RS PRl L A 22
EA 2 BEEEETAEBALRFAREAEMR
Azl B -

EENBREHEERP RS

RIE ETARAISE8.10(2) 15 - 5 Pk A M Bl 5l Al Ak B
AEBEEBEERARERF CEBRAFBEREN
T

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI"”)
HWRMEERAR ([HEGB])

D & M Finance Limited ("D&M") (Note)
D & M Finance Limited ([D&M ] ) (A7iE)

TKR Finance Limited (“TKRF") (Note)
SEEEMBERAR (TRE]) (M)

Note: Both D&M and TKRF have respectively ceased the money lending business
during the year.

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI and TKRF. He is a director of D&M.
The terms and conditions of the financing loans of each of RPI, D&M
and TKRF are market driven and agreed at arm’s length between the
borrowers and the financiers. When making decisions on the above
competing business, the relevant director, in the performance of his
duty as a director of the Company, has acted and will continue to act
in the best commercial interest of the Group.

34 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #4128 B R A7

Money lending
B
Money lending
BN

Money lending
B

Biit - D&M RFRE 9 BRI F AL IEE R E -

REBRTEAHRVBERSBEI2EERERAZER
RIZEEZEWH-H ADIMZ EE - 1 R 75 - DAMK
SREEZHBERZERRGEHHABTISZERI A
BEEHEATHERE REFTLARFUHERZ
RER BHES (RBIIRIEARRRESZHY
B)EEUHSEERDTEAEERETENEZ
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FTERRER
As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the RZE——F+_A=1+—H BEARABREEER
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the HEEPFE3cKRAEATE 2ERMAE  T78H (B
Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register RRREBZRITBABIN RARBIRDFEER 2 &
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the mIEORBWT

SFO were as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Shares held Nature of interest issued share capital
BRERERB FEROGHE ERME HEeERTREAES L
Keen Start Limited 1,098,000,000 (L) Beneficial owner 14.16%
(Note) BEomEAA
(K7&E)
Ameriprise Financial Inc 696,817,050 (L) Interest of controlled corporation 8.99%

E32d NSk

Capital Research and Management 545,429,500 (L) Investment manager 7.04%
Company RELE
FIL Limited 401,904,528 (L) Investment manager 5.18%
wEKIE
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 386,876,627 (L) Beneficial owner/Investment 4.99% (L)
54,738,478 (S) manager/Person having a 0.71% (S)
98,354,144 (P) security 1.27% (P)

interest in shares/Custodian
corporation/Approved lending
agent
BEnla AN REER ARG
REEZ 2 AL FEERQF %

HEEEREA
Remarks: (L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position, (P) — Lending Pool iFi()—EFE (S)—KE  (P)— A EE LRI 7
Note: These Shares are held by Keen Start Limited as beneficial owner. Keen Biat: ZERD EKeen Start LimitedE REREBARE ©
Start Limited is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which in Keen Start LimitedddSmart Ease Corporation% & #
turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor. The interest & - fmSmart Ease CorporationfifRZFR L2 E
disclosed herein was included in the interest of Mr Chan How Chung, BoRNABREEEREIETRAB ZEE ] —8MF
Victor as disclosed in the section under “Interests of Directors and Chief BE R BBE RSB ARZREE 2 EEZR -
Executives” in this report.
Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under B EXF#EEIN REE S RBEKROIE3361KTF
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2011, the EzELEMABER RZBE——F+=-_A=+—8"
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an RABWEEMSEMEMALTRAR B RN KA
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the ROFPHEEERIAR -

Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased
a total of 48,450,000 ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration of HK$21,197,250 pursuant to the general
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 29 June 2011. Details of the repurchases of

shares were as follows:

Total number of

EEEYN
FRALEI LA FEBEEARBEEREMERED
MEBNEL -

BEERWEAQA LTRSS

REBEE-ZT——S+_-_A=+—HILEER KAQF
BEARABRER-ZZE——FXAZTHLBERITZR
REFERE LR —RERE - ABRE21,197,250
BT AT A H 8 B148,450,000/% E @A - BRI
MEEZFHBENT:

ordinary Aggregate
shares Repurchase consideration consideration
Month/Year repurchased per Share (expenses excluded)
BAE
F/B FREBEE B R ERERRE (TBEMAX)
Highest Lowest
RS RIE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
September 2011 34,750,000 0.475 0.430 15,302,500
—ZT——%NA
October 2011 13,700,000 0.440 0.420 5,894,750
—ZE——%1A
48,450,000 21,197,250

All the repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value
thereof. The above repurchases were effected with a view to benefit
shareholders of the Company as a whole in enhancing the net assets
and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption

by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of any listed securities of
the Company during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 21 September 2011, the Company entered into a subscription

agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited whereby
the Company agreed to issue up to HK$1,040,200,000 in aggregate
principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due 2016 (the “Bonds”).
HK$77,800,000 in principal amount of the Bonds (the “VC Placed
Bonds”) shall be issued by the Company to Kingly Profits Corporation
(“Kingly Profits”), a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr Chan
How Chung, Victor, a director and substantial shareholder of the
Company. By virtue of Mr Chan being a connected person of the
Company, Kingly Profits as Mr Chan's associate is also a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the issue of the VC Placed Bonds
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a non-
exempt connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements therein.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’'s circular
dated 5 November 2011. Independent shareholders’ approval of the
issue of the VC Placed Bonds to Kingly Profits was granted at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 22 November 2011.
Accordingly, completion of the issue of the VC Placed Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$77,800,000 to Kingly Profits took place on 28
November 2011.

Particulars of transactions with related parties of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 49 to the financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2011 are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in note 41 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 23 to 27.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITOR
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ting Ho Kwan

& Chan is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to
159, which comprise the consolidated and the Company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B Y & B RS

iy

3 B g A

;
c

s~
e

~t)

1
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AEEtE T (ATEME R ERBRENES
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BERERN BRAAZEAEABREBEZZHLSF
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iZRBEaRER URTBREFBERMERE MM
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (F)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Income Statement

AWK

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
k=3 FETT FET
Turnover B 5 1,809,127 1,614,328
Cost of sales/services rendered HE RERS ZRA 26(b) (667,521) (671,150)
Other income E b A 5 14,993 22,432
Other gains/(losses), net Hiplgss  (B518) F 58 5 1,126 (5,526)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (78,235) (73,178)
Administrative expenses 1THE A (246,182) (203,391)
Operating profit s R 833,308 683,515
Finance costs % E H 8 (26,524) (3,384)
Profit before taxation R B Bl 5% F 9 806,784 680,131
Taxation I8 12 (54,317) (35,677)
Profit for the year FEEF 752,467 644,454
Attributable to: AR AT HESL -
Equity shareholders of NI 33
the Company 14 723,452 636,016
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 2 29,015 8,438
752,467 644,454
Earnings per share for profit AAREERREGEN ZERER
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 15

— Basic — &R

— Diluted —#E

Details of dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in

note 13 to the financial statements.

The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

9.29 cents 1l

8.26 cents fllI

9.29 cents 1l

8.23 cents 1lli

FABENREZZRMNRES ZFBNTBRENE13

HE -

FAIEN9BE ZMEBAGZ A B MEK — 8D -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWRSE X

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E—ZF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit for the year FEEF 752,467 644,454
Other comprehensive income Hit2mE s
Exchange difference arising from HMEIRINETE I IS MR 2 [E =58
translation of financial statements of
foreign operations 39,441 16,809
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMUZLE 791,908 661,263
Attributable to: AT AR
Equity shareholders of the Company RR A= IR 760,323 651,055
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 31,585 10,208
791,908 661,263

The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERBR

At 31 December 2011

RZE——F+=—A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ZET-TF
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
B iE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R 16 292,150 236,607
Prepaid lease payments + Hb {5 AR 2 T AR AR
on land use rights 17 36,751 36,103
Investment property REME 18 1,354 1,159
Goodwill RS 19 2,428,796 1,702,266
Intangible assets B AE 20 332,208 103,650
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEESREE 21 44,000 -
Statutory deposits EERE 24 838 833
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 25 77 46
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,136,174 2,080,664
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 5E 26 116,964 138,793
Trade receivables B E 5 RN 27 924,802 867,998
Utility and other deposits AASXRHEMEZRS 28 447,043 287,916
Prepayments and other receivables T8 &I & H b fE I 5118 29 617,709 430,876
Financial assets at fair value through BBIEZE AN BN EZCHMEE
profit or loss 30 6,928 8,514
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITER 31 489,018 294,214
Total current assets mEN A EEE 2,602,464 2,028,311
Total assets mEE 5,738,638 4,108,975
EQUITY BRRER
Capital and reserves attributable ZFRATERBREGERE HE
to equity shareholders of the
Company
Share capital N 33 77,527 77,677
Reserves & 4,228,946 3,600,113
Proposed final dividend EEARARE 13 61,910 43,608
4,368,383 3,721,398
Non-controlling interests FERES 168,431 52,710
Total equity B 4,536,814 3,774,108
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

REEEREBEXR (&)

At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—ZF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
B iE FHET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Convertible bonds A AR 25 39 830,745 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAE 25 70,315 59,933
Obligation under a finance lease BEEEES 40 441 =
Total non-current liabilities B A EBE 901,501 59,933
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 36 84,403 77,494
Other payables and accruals E M 8 5 RRIE R B 5T IR 37 114,994 54,159
Bank borrowings RITIEE 38 58,927 111,466
Obligation under a finance lease BEEEES 40 109 -
Current tax liabilities EHHEEE 41,890 31,815
Total current liabilities MEAEEE 300,323 274,934
Total liabilities HEE 1,201,824 334,867
Total equity and liabilities BRERKAEAE 5,738,638 4,108,975
Net current assets REEEFE 2,302,141 1,753,377
Total assets less current BEERRBERS
liabilities 5,438,315 3,834,041
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBERAER-E——F=A-thBEEETESRE
the Board on 29 March 2012 and are signed on behalf of the Board DRERERZE YHATIHESTERERES:
by:
Chan How Chung, Victor Boo Chun Lon
CES:] N3
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EZE
The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these BAOE150B B AGAMBERE—LH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEEEX

At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——F+_-_HA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
k=3 FET FEoT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN - X 22 3,831,944 2,927,742
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 #IFRIB & H b fE I 5118 29 - 2
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE Uk B /BB 1 ] SR8 22 200,000 200,000
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEH 37 76,167 644
Total current assets MEEEBE 276,167 200,646
Total assets mEE 4,108,111 3,128,388
EQUITY RRER
Capital and reserves RA TSR REMN
attributable to equity EARRE
shareholders of the Company
Share capital & 7 33 77,527 77,677
Reserves & 35 3,117,566 2,916,053
Proposed final dividend BEAHRE 13 61,910 43,608
Total equity B 3,257,003 3,037,338
LIABILITIES a8E
Current liabilities REE &
Other payables and accruals E b FE 5 50IR K FE T RRIR 37 20,363 2,143
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT — K B A R R IE 22 - 88,907
20,363 91,050
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 39 830,745 =
Total liabilities BEE 851,108 91,050
Total equity and liabilities BREEZREEAE 4,108,111 3,128,388
Net current assets REBEEZE 255,804 109,596
Total assets less current HMEERABER
liabilities 4,087,748 3,037,338

MBRRENR-_Z-——F=A-+NBEEFTERE
REETE THTNEEERRRE:

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 29 March 2012 and are signed on behalf of the Board
by:

Chan How Chung, Victor Boo Chun Lon

PR Ik B8
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ £

The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FAIEN1S9BE B AGREMBHRE —3H °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HREREZEH X

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-T——5+-A=+-ALEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRARERREL
Capital  Convertible  Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Share Share  redemption bonds payment Special  translation Retained final controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
TARES  ARHRA Bd
Bk ROEE RARDERE ff  REZEE  RHEBRE  EXRE  REEW RERR & FEREE  RELE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
77 77 7 &z FET AT AT AT AT 77 {77 7
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF-A-B2&8 75,902 2424014 158 = 17,758 21415 32,055 760,148 33,083 3,370,533 76,138 3,446,671
Profit o the year FEER = = = - - - - 636,016 - 636,016 8438 644,454
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZERS - - - - - - 15,039 - - 15,039 1,770 16,809
Acquisition of additional interests in FERELRMER
subsidiaries - - - - - (27.415) - (197,749) - (225,164) (33,636) (258,800)
Non-contralling interests arising from hEHBARMELL
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48) FEMRES (Hil48) = = = - - - - (167589) = (167,585) = (167,585)
Recognition of share option benefits at BARAA B ENBRERT
fair value - - - - 4,965 - - - - 4,965 - 4,965
Share options lapsed BREXH - - - - (8,606) - = 8,606 = = = =
Issue of new shares BTHRG 1775 146,025 - - - - - - - 147,800 - 147,800
Transfer to share premium on exercise of RAEERENEZREE
share options - 8,035 - - (8,035) - - - - - - -
2009 Proposed final dividend paid (note /3 —EZAFREMRERERE
(Hit13) = = = = = = = (92) (33,083) (33,175 - (33,175)
Interim dividend (rote 13) HERE (Hit13) = = = = = = = (27,031) - (27,031) - (27,031)
2010 Proposed final dividend (note 13) “E-TERERERE (HH13) - - - - - - - 43,608) 43,608 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2010 and RZF-BE+-A=1-Ak
1 January 2011 ZE--5-f-AH 71,671 2,578,074 158 = 6,082 = 47,094 968,705 43,608 3,721,398 52,710 3,774,108
Profit for the year FEER = = = = = = = 723452 = 723452 29,015 752,467
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZERS - - - - - - 36,871 - - 36,871 2,570 39,441
Acquisition of additional interests YEREADEMES
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - (168,489) - (168,489) (31,511) (200,000)
Non-controlling interests arising from KEHBAREEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48) FERES (Hit48) - - - - - - - - - - 115,647 115,647
Recognition of share option benefits at BRRAN i EBRRERT
fair value - - - - 12,007 - - - - 12,007 - 12,007
Issue of new shares BHRG 335 25,811 - - - - - - - 26,146 - 26,146
Repurchase of shares BERH (485) (20,788) 485 - - - - 485) - 21.213) - (21213)
Convertible bonds - equity component, ThRES-ERTH
net of transaction costs BABRAMA - - - 119,358 - - - - - 119,358 - 119,358
Transfer to share premium on exercise of R BREMEZRAERE
share options - 1,888 - - (1,888) - - - - - - -
2010 Proposed final dividend paid (rote 13 —E-TEDENBAFERE
(Hit13) = = = = = = = (33) (43,608) (43,641) - (43,641)
Interim dividend (note 13) THRE (Hi13) = = = = = = = (37,446) - (37,446) - (37,446)
2011 Proposed final dividend (note 13) “TFRERBRE (HH13) - - - - - - - (61,910) 61,910 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZF-——F+-A=1t-BzEH 71,521 2,584,985% 643* 119,358* 16,201 -* 83,965F  1423,794% 61,910 4,368,383 168,431 4,536,814
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * REFEREERGEERERBRIEEHHEL
approximately HK$4,228,946,000 in the consolidated balance sheet. 4,228,946,000/8 7T °

The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HFERETRER

HE-F——%+-A=f+—HLLFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
Bt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEH
Profit before taxation B 54 Bl g A 806,784 680,131
Adjustments for: FAEIER :
Interest income A B YA 5 (2,150) (1,022)
Interest expense FERK 8 26,524 3,384
Share option benefits i AR 1a A 34 12,007 4,965
(Reversal of allowance for)/ REBRBE (BERE) BEFE
Allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts, net 5 9 (29) 30
Depreciation and amortisation e R 9 96,980 65,359
Forfeiture of deposits for RWBARE L HERAEZS
acquisition of leasehold land
use rights 9 - 3,201
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERRZBZEE
plant and equipment 9 1,978 720
Net (gains)/losses on disposal of HEBBEIEARENEZ
financial assets at fair value eRMEEZ (Ka) EiEFE
through profit or loss 5 (1,275) 4,038
Fair value losses on financial BBBREANEEZ
assets at fair value through CREEZANEEE
profit or loss 5 316 2,714
Fair value gain on investment BEYHEZ ARE R
property 18 (138) (174)
Operating profit before R EEESEHAZLERR
changes in working capital 940,997 763,346
Changes in working capital EELESEY
Increase in statutory deposits JETE RS IE N (5) (201)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD (3 m) 26,592 (36,540)
Purchases of financial assets at fair FEBBEZIZALEFEZ
value through profit or loss CRLEE (843) =
Proceeds on disposal of financial HEBRBESEANENEZ
assets at fair value through ERMEEZFESNIE
profit or loss 3,388 7,798
Increase in trade receivables FEUWE 5 AR FIE N (35,331) (182,109)
Increase in utility and other deposits A FA = % & H fth 3z & 12 N (153,519) (38,804)
Increase in prepayments and TEBGRIA K B A & U R IR 38 AN
other receivables (70,339) (43,585)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged BEHEMBITERORLD, S (E )
bank deposits 36,537 (28,035)
Decrease in bank balances — RITRRE D —BYRP
segregated accounts 1,983 12,342
Decrease in trade payables B 5 BR TR (1,459) (35,450)
Decrease in other payables and E b FE 5 5RIB R B AT IR R
accruals (12,572) (24,064)
Net cash generated from REXBMBREFE
operations 735,429 394,698
Interest received 2 F R 2,150 1,022
Interest paid [EENFIESS (5,889) (3,384)
Taxation paid EENE 25 (36,464) (20,100)
Net cash generated from RETBHMEREFHE
operating activities 695,226 372,236
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Conso|io|a’reo| Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBRERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE T ——F+-A=1+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ZET-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE WERXK
equipment 16, 32 (129,242) (134,772)
Proceeds on disposal of property, LEME BEREZHZ
plant and equipment FriS 1A 434 68
Purchase of available-for-sale ﬁﬁ,\?—rf’ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
financial asset (44,000) -
Payment for intangible assets LA & B A N RIE (24,390) =
Acquisition of additional interests EIYEYNSIE S Hx%ﬁnﬁiﬁuﬁlﬁﬁ
from non-controlling equity mIMER
holders of the subsidiaries 47 (200,000) (258,800)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WM E AR (MRAEERE)
cash acquired 48 (887,607) (175,585)
Net cash used in investing REEBHFMARS FHE
activities (1,284,805) (569,089)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Issue of shares, net of issuing costs TR D (FOKZETTEA) 26,146 147,800
Payment for repurchase of shares BE B B% 19 T 2~ 72008 33(a) (21,273) =
Net proceeds from issue of 517 AT FR IR 1 718 30R B 5
convertible bonds 944,421 -
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSHRIEA 48,805 111,466
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (106,781) (81,556)
Repayment of obligation under BEREEEED
a finance lease (89) -
Dividend paid to the equity BRAARERRRESZMNZRE
shareholders of the Company 13 (81,087) (60,206)
Net cash generated from RETEBHMERESFHE
financing activities 810,142 117,504
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERBEEEY
IN CASH AND CASH #m ORD) B8
EQUIVALENTS 220,563 (79,349)
Exchange gain on cash and Be kR EEY 2B K
cash equivalents 10,550 4,387
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BHZREREESZEY
AT 1 JANUARY 234,225 309,187
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—HA=+—B2ZRER
AT 31 DECEMBER HEZEEY 317 465,338 234,225
The notes on pages 49 to 159 are an integral part of these FAIF 1598 v T B ARG S IEHREK — 209

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% &R M &=

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated

in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suite
2601, 26/F, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparing for the listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the Group in Hong Kong on 15 August
2000 and its shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 September 2000.

During the year, the Group involves in the following principal
activities:

e Lottery business

e  Financial services:
Broking
Securities margin financing
Corporate finance and asset management
Money lending

The lottery business comprises development and production
of lottery machines, related operating software system and
networks for lottery industry, the distribution and marketing of
lottery products and development of mobile value added services
for lottery business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

— & R

HERPAEERBRAR ([ARAF])RRERE
MK INERECBEREELNA ARAMNEE
XBHB R B S IBE S TITE255-257% /M
E1%261£2601% -

BB A EBAREEZEEAEHAR BB R
R EMzSEEHNE ARFAR_TTTHF
NATHEBKARNEBRES ZIER AR M
BHBTR_ETZTFNLAZTNBRBRE A
FEMR LT

FRN AEEREUATEESS:

. BEEH

e SRR
RIS
BHTRBE
TCERERBEEER
N

HEEBEERTEARLNE ([HE])KE

ZHERRABNEE FETERABEFERMER

BABE HMEEmARXETISER AR
B REBOTFHRILERS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial

which collective term

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applicable of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

BE-T——45+-A=+-ALEE

2.

TEFHHER

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEBE(8)

(b)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
investment properties (note 2(h)) and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (note 2(e)(i)) are stated at their
fair values.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Controls exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

2.

52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0

Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests, represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loan
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 2(o) or 2(p)
depending on the nature of the liability.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

2.

TREBE(H)
(0 HEAREE(E
(i) MEBRAARIZRER (&)

T8 X R VIR & TH R I R 2R E 4R
RRIEZ BB AGEHBRK-E
RAEEAUBHRRE  REEZ &
M2 REBRR S 2 EMARER
Ne2BHHE EREERAXHZAK
HEER EERALERERERR
A SR B U s AR R 2 75 SEf 85 o

JEEER R R IEIFM AR R HEE
B A JRE T AR AR B 3 £ 5tk 2
ZER R NTA AW EEM G EEA
SEEBANZERDA LA A
BEEENANAEEZBIMER A
KEAZE-BEHBEM EEURQ
FAE K iR JE R A 21 PTG BB X B AT
B EEFERL D] 5t EE A I
P g 2

FERBSESEEERBRAIA
B BEAD AR REGED
D FFIR o 250 IF E B & PTG A 5
BEE DESARGERRESEE
Was R W AFFIE i af BN A Bl 4
mRREEAEZ2EFELRERER
Wik B DIR » SEE AR A 5
BAZEREER IS IFERER
FAEAREZEMANEE IR
ffsE2(0)k2(p) (R FEBEBENEEM
E) ESRBEERBRAIRES
BmEE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

(ii)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial assets (see note 2(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

jointly controlled entity (note 2(c)(ii)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses,
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). The results of the subsidiary are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivables.

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the group or company
and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(ii) Joint ventures (continued)

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities
and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar
items in the Group's financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it is
attributable to the other ventures. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
joint venture that result from the Group’s purchase
of assets from the joint venture until it re-sells the
assets to an independent party. However, a loss on
the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable
value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial assets (see note 2(e)).

(d) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (note 2(j)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of the purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading and are stated
in the balance sheet at fair value. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction cost and gain or loss on the fair value
changes of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

TREBE(HE)
ERMEE (&
(i) BHRERZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(e) Financial assets (continued) (e)
(ii) Loans and receivables

56

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise “statutory deposits”,
“trade receivables, deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and bank balances” in the consolidated
balance sheet (notes 2(I) and 2(m)).

(iii) Available-for-sale-financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and
held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value. Gain or loss on fair value changes
of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(see note 2(j)), the cumulative loss is recognised from
equity to profit or loss even though the financial
assets have not been derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses (note 2(j)). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant
and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. For plant and equipment
under construction, no depreciation is provided until the
construction is completed and the assets are ready for
their intended use. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

— Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 20%
— Lottery machines 4 — 12 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 -33%
— Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
— Motor vehicles 10 - 20%

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in profit or loss in the
period the item is derecognised.

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties, being properties owned or held
under finance leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, are stated in the balance sheet at fair value.
These include lands held for currently undetermined
future use. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note
2(1).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (note 2(u)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Prepaid
lease payments are accounted for as described in note
2(u).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at

cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10
years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Deferred development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop computer
software is capitalised and deferred only when
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects
are technically feasible, and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation is provided
on the straight-line basis over the commercial lives
of the underlying production, subject to a maximum
of 20 years commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Operating right

Operating right represents expenditure incurred
on obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre.
The operating right is with indefinite useful life and
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and tested for impairment annually.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how represents the technology,
technical information, know-how and experience in
relation to the lottery business. The technical know-
how is with indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and tested
for impairment annually.

Long term contracts

Long term contracts represent operating right
contracts with lottery centres acquired in business
combination. These contracts have definite useful life
and are measured initially at their fair values on the
acquisition date. After initial recognition, they are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10

years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities: note 2(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss

events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in jointly controlled entities
accounted for by proportionate consolidation
(see note 2(c)(ii)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(j)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- intangible assets;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEEFBER(E)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EBERME(E
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EtEEZHE (&)

-~ investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures - RWBARAREELXZERE
(except for those classified as held for sale or (PERFIELELBRIEES
included in a disposal group that is classified as RFEFEHEZHEMER 2R ER
held for sale); and h) R

- goodwill. - BEe

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable MEEEMDPRIFELE BSHAEE

amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, Z AU Bl SR o AN BB ME

intangible assets that are not yet available for use and RAEFEROEEEEREE THEE
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the ARERNETVEE BEREEFE
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or EERETR B EMEATKRE

not there is any indication of impairment. R

—  Calculation of recoverable amount — FrEAKEIZEE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the & EE /9 ] Y2 [B] 8 BB DA R 7o (B Rk 8E
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and ERAMEREBEEMEFTHRS
value in use. In assessing value in use, the HERE - ENMHERABER
estimated future cash flows are discounted to 2 AR AR IR X G ET R 2K
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate RenshB2RHE ZMREX
that reflects current market assessments of time A R R 735 & s T AT ) B B
value of money and the risks specific to the HEBENZEENERRR -0
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash BEMEANRSRARBLEDT
inflows largely independent of those from other BREVNEMEEMEENE S
assets, the recoverable amount is determined A BIREBYEERES KA
for the smallest group of assets that generates WR/NEEHR (NHEEES
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash- iz ) 3R 7 7E PI Y Bl & %8 o

generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses —  BREEEE

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or REEXEMBzREEESN
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset, ZAREE SR E e 6 R
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, FenERERNERE R
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment CEABUZEBRAREER
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating BERERDPETREESE
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying B (s —HEL) 2 ERHE
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash- ZAREE  NERELOUR D B
generating units (or group of units) and then, (k—#HBM)AEMEE 2K
to reduce the carrying amount of the other HE HEEREETESRER
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro T EAE Bl & S8 1B 8F 6 A AN sk 52
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an RAEBE(MAEE) -

asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (note
2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(0

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (note 2(j)), except for the
following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts; and

- short-term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less

any allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. The
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and
assesses the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax
assets and the future taxable profit to determine whether
any recognised deferred tax assets should be derecognised
and any unrecognised deferred tax assets should be
recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(s), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except for the
following payables:

- short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are

measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest-free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component. The values of non-equity derivative
component which are considered as closely related to the
host contract are included in the liability component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds, including the non-equity derivative
component, is measured at fair value which is determined
by reference to the fair value of a similar stand-alone
debt instrument that includes the non-equity derivative
feature but does not have an associated equity conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component (including the non-
equity derivative component) is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Convertible bonds (continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until either the
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the convertible
bonds reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries
have no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the balance
sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date
for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, and a corresponding adjustment
to share-based payment reserve over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(s)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note 2(s)(iii)
below. Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 2(s)(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

74

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

Commission income and handling fee income,
asset management and advisory fee income
Income arising from broking, corporate finance and
asset management is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the amount can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that it will be received.

Gain or loss on investments held for trading
Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value on the
balance sheet date.

Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods including lottery machines and related
software systems are recognised when the goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related receivables
are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from lottery business

Income from lottery business including lottery
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance
service and other related services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes sales tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Rental income from investment properties

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased assets. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment receivables.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for

a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination

is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

2.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Leases (continued)

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the

leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of assets to the Company. All other assets are

classified as operating leases.

()

(ii)

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in
the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. The corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, on the finance leases are
recorded as obligations under finance leases. All
assets held under finance leases are classified as
property, plant and equipment, except for those
properties held to earn rental income which are
classified as investment properties, in the balance
sheet.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment as set out in note 2(f), except for the
estimated useful lives cannot exceed the relevant
lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Leases (continued)

(i1)

(iii)

Leases of land and buildings (continued)

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the balance sheet as prepaid lease
payments on land use rights which are stated at cost
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property using fair value
model or is held for development for sale, and if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as
if held under a finance lease.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals (if any) are
charged or credited to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities are currencies other than
HK$. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HK$ at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and their profit
or loss items are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The exchange
differences arising from the translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange translation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
entity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating recourses to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group as

follows:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009)

Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments to
HK (IFRIC) 14

(2010)
HK (IFRIC) 19

Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum
funding requirements and their
interaction — Prepayments of a

minimum funding requirement

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. The

amendments to HK (IFRIC) 14 have had no material impact on

the Group's financial statements as the Group does not have

such minimum funding requirement. HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet

had a material impact on the Group’s financial statements as

these changes will first be effective as and when the Group

enters a relevant transaction (for example, a debt for equity

swap).
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82

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards
(continued)

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does
not have any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous period. HKAS 24 (revised
2009) also introduces modified disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. This does not impact the Group
because the Group is not a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group's financial instruments in note 44 have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements. These amendments do
not have any material impact on the classification, recognition
and measurements of the amounts recognised in the financial

statements in the current and previous periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (note 19) and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving inventories
The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the inventories may be obsolete or slow-moving. The
identification of obsolete or slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the inventories
and charges in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.
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84

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax losses of
approximately HK$265,453,000 (2010: HK$205,223,000)
was not recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes place.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
expenses in the year in which such determination is made.

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group's financial statements account
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making its
judgement.
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EXRG A RAM (F)
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TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ DF

(LOSSES), NET

Turnover represents commission income and handling fee
income, interest income and income from provision of lottery

machines and related services.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, other income and other

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

EEE HttAREMKE  (BE8)FE

EEERBBARFEBLEA FERARE
HE R E ARG UA

AEBMEFE AW AREME (BE)

gains/(losses), net is as follows: FEAIMET :
2011 2010
—ET——F T —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Turnover B
Commission income and handling fee HeWARFEERA
income 3,915 4,114
Interest income from REUATEEZAMEKA
— banks —iR1T 4 5
— margin clients —HFREP 233 274
Income from provision of lottery machines — $2 % 22 # & 48 B8 AR 75 U A
and related services 1,804,975 1,609,935
1,809,127 1,614,328
Other income Hi g A
Interest income on bank deposits RITFE N F) BUA 2,150 1,022
Sundry income HIFUA 7,621 15,806
Rental income from REUTEEZEAS KA
— investment property —REME 50 112
— sub-letting of rented premises —HAmESH 5,172 5,492
14,993 22,432
Other gains/(losses), net Hphlh s (B8) F8
Net gains/(losses) on disposal of financial LERBBREANENENESREE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ZWzs (1) F5E 1,275 (4,038)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair BBEZEANBFEZEMEEY
value through profit or loss NI EEE (316) (2,714)
Exchange gains b 5 U - 1,052
Fair value gain on investment property BEYHEZ AR E R 138 174
Reversal of allowance for impairment of REBERRBERERREFE
bad and doubtful debts, net 29 -
1,126 (5,526)
1,825,246 1,631,234
Total interest income on financial assets not BREFFZANBHEZECRMEEY
at fair value through profit or loss HBAE A 2,387 1,301
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86

HwaRME (EF)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, i.e. the Group’s Executive Directors, for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments:

- Lottery business

- Financial services

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties. The
amounts reported for the prior year have been restated in
conformity with the current year’s presentation.

The Board assesses the performance of the business segments
based on profit before taxation without allocation of
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business Segments

(a)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011 are

DERER ()

E Bkl

(a) BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HBIEFEZH
MEEIN_F——Ft_A=1+—H2zn

as follows: HEERBEOT:
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2011
R=B——F+=ZA=+—-HRK
BEZALFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
KEEH SRRY Aast
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE T FE T FE T
Turnover ] 1,804,975 4,152 1,809,127
Segment results o EB AR 861,269 (2,493) 858,776
Net unallocated expenses Ko kam L F 5 (51,992)
Profit before taxation B 54 A1 A 806,784
Taxation TIE (54,317)
Profit for the year N 2 s A 752,467
Assets BE
Segment assets DEBEE 5,481,958 45,246 5,527,204
Unallocated assets Ko EE 211,434
Total assets WEE 5,738,638
Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities DEBE 321,064 16,452 337,516
Unallocated liabilities vk = 864,308
Total liabilities BEE

1,201,824
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business Segments (continued)
(a) (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 are

PEMER (&)

EXAI(E)

(a) (#&)
HE-T—
PHEERNR=_T—ZTF+=_A=+—8

ZEF_A=+—HALFEZ

as follows: ZOHEERBENT :
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2010
RZE—ZF+A=+—HBR
HEZALFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
KRR 2R &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET
Turnover B 1,609,935 4,393 1,614,328
Segment results D EBZEAE 710,980 (4,875) 706,105
Net unallocated expenses ROBERZFHE (25,974)
Profit before taxation B B4 Al v A 680,131
Taxation Bi1E (35,677)
Profit for the year RNEE A 644,454
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 3,894,160 40,937 3,935,097
Unallocated assets ROBEEE 173,878
Total assets BEE 4,108,975
Liabilities =K
Segment liabilities DEBE 303,331 19,011 322,342
Unallocated liabilities RAOEAE 12,525
Total liabilities RN =

88 REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

DERER ()
XK (F)
(b) Rfthn EBEH

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Business Segments (continued)
(b) Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z2——S+-A=+—HLFE

Lottery Financial
business services Total
KREEK S w R &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Other information H & R
Depreciation and amortisation Pr &S BN 96,512 468 96,980
(Reversal of allowance for)/ REERE (BERERL)
allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts (41) 12 (29)
Capital expenditure &N 154,271 - 154,271
For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—TF+_A=1+—RHILtFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
MERER © AR 7% B &
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other information H b &
Depreciation and amortisation P88 B 5 64,855 504 65,359
Allowance for/(reversal of REBERERE (BERE)
allowance for) impairment of
bad and doubtful debts (201) 231 30
Capital expenditure BEARREZ 134,491 281 134,772
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZ——

Frt_HA=t—BLLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IWER(B)
Geographical Segments i & 2 &P
The Group’s business segments operate in two main AREBEKD R MEEBMEEZE-
geographical areas.
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
R-B-——5+-A=+-AKBEZALEE
Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities expenditure
DHEE
REBA
Al
EXE (FB#]) BEE BeE EARX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET FAET FAET FAET
Hong Kong b 4,152 (54,485) 256,680 880,760 -
The PRC B 1,804,975 861,269 5,481,958 321,064 154,271
1,809,127 806,784 5,738,638 1,201,824 154,271
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2010
RZE—ZF+-A=+—ARHEEZBLEFE
Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities  expenditure
AEEE
wH,/
BER (B1) BEE Ak BARAX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong & 4,393 (30,849) 69,815 31,536 281
The PRC H 1,609,935 710,980 4,039,160 303,331 134,491
1,614,328 680,131 4,108,975 334,867 134,772
Information About Major Customers FRXEEFZEH
None of the customer contributed over 10% of the total ZMFERNTEEMZP(HASEBEEEFEI0%
turnover of the Group during both years. LA E o
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BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

STAFF COSTS 7. EEHEX
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REDR 117,963 98,625
Bonuses TE4T 4,286 608
MPF contributions WIEE R 377 386
Social security costs & IR R KA 14,862 4,118
Employee share option benefits & 8 IR R T 12,007 4,965
149,495 108,702
FINANCE COSTS 8. HBEA
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBELFE 5,885 3,377
Interest on convertible bonds (note 39) AR ES 2 B (K 7F39) 20,635 =
Interest on client payables with ERLE BN 2 BN & P SRIERE
no fixed repayment terms 3 7
Finance charges on obligation under a MEREEB2MBEE
finance lease 1 -
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities RBBRERANEFENSRAR
not at fair value through profit or loss ZH B R 5 26,524 3,384
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZ——

F+-B=t-RALFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. FRBLATEF
The Group’s profit before taxation is stated after charging the REBBRBAKEMNA 2T AT E IR A T&IE :
following:
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Restated
]l
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl
— audit services — B 2R 2,804 2,782
— other services — H th AR %5 261 656
Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful 532 Bk Ja (B # & 75 28
debts, net - 30
Cost of inventories sold (note 26(b)) HEFEZKA (Bat26(b)) 567,103 614,777
Forfeiture of deposits for acquisition of BB ARELERAE TS
leasehold land use rights - 3,201
Research and development costs (AR IR 11,648 13,137
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEREH2ZERE
equipment 1,978 720
Depreciation and amortisation on LATRIE B B 4T & K3
— property, plant and equipment —M%E WERZE 87,034 57,390
— prepaid lease payments on land use rights — i R 2 B AOMNR 941 775
— intangible assets —EREE 9,005 7,194
Operating lease rentals in respect of MATHEZREHER S
— office premises and warehouse —WREMEREE 34,586 32,004
— machinery — s 1,215 1,163
Exchange losses M 5 518 413 -
10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 10. EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

AEEEEMERE LTARAEER (RAHE

By F161EHETENT

2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: we

Executive Directors WITES 150 150
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUIEBMITES 450 450
600 600

Other emoluments for executive Directors: WTESZHEMME :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RAREE N 5,074 1,210
MPF contributions EIES R 12 12
5,686 1,822
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

10. EEME (&)

Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIYFHITES
The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors were ENTHEUFRTEE 20T :
as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
YUEN Wai Ho Bu g 5 150 150
CHOW Siu Ngor /N5 150 150
LEE Ka Lun FRE 150 150
450 450
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR - PEEMENTEIENTESZ
Independent Non-executive Directors during the years. In B o E AN+ 7N £ [ 4 () B =5 52 A 4T B
addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of S 1ERIMAZSE B kA& 2 52 E) iR B
the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the ZHE(ZE—FF &) -
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).
Executive Directors (b) HITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
e 2R ERER
we BEAE T B MeesE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
2011 —E2-——F
Executive Directors: HITES:
CHAN How Chung, Victor PR 2 B8 - 5,074 12 5,086
BOO Chun Lon MR BE 150 - - 150
150

5,074 12 5,236
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BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME (&)
(b) Executive Directors (continued) (b) HMITESE (&
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
e RMR RIKER
bk BHE e T EI 4R il <& 42 58
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FHET
2010 —g-%%
Executive Directors: WMITES:
CHAN How Chung, Victor PR 2 BB = 1,210 12 1,222
BOO Chun Lon AR U 5 150 - - 150
150 1,210 12 1,372
There was no arrangement under which any Director FAWEETLEMEZEURELRER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the EEMME 2 ZHE - tbIN  AEEN &M E
years. In addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group EXMEMMEERMARE B L MNAR
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon ZERENERBIHE(ZE-—ZF &) -
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2010: Nil).
11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 11. AEBREHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the FRAREEREESTMALZHBE—% (=
Group, one (2010: one) was a Director of the Company whose T—ZF:—Z)ARAEZ EMEEHR L
emoluments were included in the disclosures in note 10 above. XHFI0 - EBMUE(ZE—F :MF)A L
The emoluments of the remaining four (2010: four) individuals ZHEmT

were as follows:

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fre RAREENZ 5,958 6,798
MPF contributions BB HN 36 33
5,994 6,831
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12.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 1. AEBREHEMAL (F)
Their remuneration was within the following bands: BEZHBEERAT :
2011 2010
—E——F —ZET-TF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH B8 AZ
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £%1,000,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L =1,500,0007%8 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7L £2,500,0007%8 7T 1 2
4 4
In addition to the above, three (2010: one) of the employees BREXFTEN RERN ER=5(=ZF—F
was granted share options of the Group during the year. Details F:—R)EEERAEE  ERE - FHEBR
of the share options schemes are set out in note 34. R E 2 FBEE R34 -
TAXATION 12. |

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the financial
statements as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for
the year (2010: Nil).

One of the jointly controlled entities, Beijing Guard Libang
Technology Co Ltd, and two of the subsidiaries, % & i 488 & &l
K ABPR A A and Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC are subject to a preferential
tax rate of 15% as they are recognised as high technology
enterprises for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular, Caishui
[2000] No. 25, one of the subsidiaries of the Group's lottery
business in the PRC, EREEBH BRI BR AR,
from income tax for two years commencing from the first year

is exempted

of profitable operations, followed by a 50% reduction for
the following three years. The first profit-making year of this
subsidiary was 2007 and thus it enjoyed 50% reduction for the
year ended 31 December 2011. The applicable income tax rate
for current year was 12.5% (2010: 12.5%).

F A 7N S5 B FE R A N SR AE () (A R B AR Bl A -
B itk - 70 B 7 3R R A I R AE BB 1S B B
(ZE—ZTF |\)-

AEBREEBET —RRPEZARZESE
BIRKENAMKARABDEMRAFEZ
ME QR EBERAKA B RARA AR T
BEBBRMARRBARI5%EBHREH -
RERZENRARBE-_T——FR-_T—F
FT_A=T - BLEFERRESDHRIiE
=,

1B % 75 75 38 A0 B4 B £ [2000] 2557 7] BR 2 63 -
REBREEBER —RRPBEZHEBERRE
MAEBELARNBEERAR A& EERNFE R
MEEREHNTET - BER=F AR
ToltMBAREEBRFER ST LF
WREBE—_T—— &+ _A=+—BLFET
BEEB - ANFEZHEAMBHRER12.5% (=
T—THE:125%)°
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12. TAXATION (continued)

Two of the subsidiaries of the Group’s lottery business in the
PRC, Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd and #3I B 4%
HIERBIRTE BB A E were established and operate at the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone of the PRC for which the
applicable preferential tax rate was 24% (2010: 22%).

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular,
Jingdishuigi [2010] No. 50, one of the subsidiaries of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC, Elottery Vision (Beijing)
Technology Co Ltd, is exempted from income tax for two years
commencing from 2009, followed by a 50% reduction for the
following three years to 2013. The applicable income tax rate
for current year was 12.5% (2010: Nil).

The applicable income tax rate for the remaining subsidiaries of
the Group's lottery business in the current year is 25% (2010:
25%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

12.

HE(E)
AEBVEZEBERBBEZMRHBR A FIMH
& B BT AR A B KR I T B LU R A
REBRARIRF BRI E R RS R EE
ZREBZERERBERA24% (ZE—FF:
22% ) °

R R T4 75 38 A0 R 3 A 42 7 (2010] 5057 7T B 2 1§
X AEBEREEBER —KRFPBEZHE AR
FEAK (LR EERAABE-SETNFE
IR FERCBMAET MEREAE=-Z—=
FIF=FARFEET -AFEZBEAMBSRE
B125% (ZT—T4F )

AEBREEB 2ESHBRARNRAFEE ZE
MG ER25% (ZFE—FF:25%) °

fra W R R 2 R

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Current tax: EHRIIE
— PRC income tax — B FREH 49,977 24,702
— Over-provision in respect of —BEFERERE
previous years (4,987) (2,513)
44,990 22,189
Deferred tax: RAERIE :
Deferred taxation relating to the FHEEARBREYREZR 2
origination and reversal of temporary EIERIIE (Hat25)
differences (note 25) 9,322 13,412
Attributable to changes in tax rates REEB R (MiE25)
(note 25) 5 76
Taxation charge TRIA H 54,317 35,677
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12. TAXATION (continued)

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

12. BE (&)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from AEERBADSEN 2 FIBEE R L2 888 (U

the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic BRREEE AR 2 AR EAE) HEW
taxation rates applicable to profit of the consolidated companies ~:

is as follows:

2011 2010

—2-—fF —T—ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before taxation

Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not subject to taxation

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

Tax effect of temporary differences not

B 75 A g A 806,784 680,131

BB E16.5%

—E—TE165%)TE A 133,119 112,222
BARMBAZTH B Z (39,258) (24,118)
HRBRERS FAIMRZAZZ

MIER & 19,329 10,444
HRFEBBEZREYE (1) (1

AEREREZRZNAXE

recognised (2,501) (97)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEBE  HIELE 5,738 7,399
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FREINE D RERTIBERE 2

the PRC subsidiaries -z (67,980) (68,431)
Over-provision of current tax in previous year 2 & #7%: 18 8 58 B & (4,987) (2,513)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEEERGCE ZHBARZ

operating in other jurisdictions TRBEEZE 10,853 696
Change in opening deferred taxation AT EEE) M 5| Bz YR

balances resulting from changes in RIBEHEE)

applicable tax rates 5 76
Taxation charge RIAX K 54,317 35,677
DIVIDENDS 13. RS

2011 2010
—2-—fF —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared and paid of TR &R A EA R BB AR @ AR0.48

0.48 HK cent (2010: 0.35 HK cent) B (=2 —F4:0.35%1l)

per ordinary share 37,446 27,031
Proposed final dividend of 0.73 HK cent BE AR SR T ®R0.738W

(2010: 0.56 HK cent) per ordinary share (ZZ=—=%:0.56/81l) 61,910 43,608

99,356 70,639
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

15.

98

HwaRME (EF)

DIVIDENDS (continued)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

The final dividend of HK$43,641,000 for financial year 2010 was
approved and paid in financial year 2011.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of approximately HK$164,514,000
(2010: approximately HK$191,729,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group's profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

13.

14.

15.

RE (&)
AEERZFRPBRESAFTARRBRRNEERK
FBFRE LHAERTAER URREERE
rERRARE-

T -TFEUHRFE 2 R 243,641,000
TEEMEVER - — —FHBEERKN -

R TR R R PR A F s R

BT AERR BB B3R T A KA A A4 = A% R
RFE R F#164,514,0008 8 (T — T4 :
#9191,729,0005& 7T ) °

BREFN

(a)

SREFRF
IR AR B R A 2 M2 R A A
S5 142 79 0 P A 26 PO B B T RS 2 P
FHBGH -

2011 2010
e i —E—FF
Profit attributable to equity shareholders ZAA Al R B EH (FHT)
of the Company (in thousand HK$) 723,452 636,016
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBRZ METER (FTR) :
shares in issue (in thousand):
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BZEEITEBRR 7,767,675 7,590,175
Effect of share options exercised BEITEEREZZE 25,504 109,750
Effect of shares repurchased BRIk DzwE (8,894) =
Weighted average number of ordinary RTtZA=+—HzE@Rkz
shares at 31 December I0#E 5 2 7,784,285 7,699,925
Basic earnings per share BREAREF 9.29 cents 1l 8.26 cents flli

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the Group's profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company and adjusted to reflect the interest on
the convertible bonds. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares on the deemed
conversion of all convertible bonds into ordinary shares.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

(b)

BREFRR
FREBRMNDBEARD B ESBIREN
A5 Bs M EtE - 304 F R A R B AT 4R
BB 2 2 st o 5t E R AT ER A 2 5@
BEHHRFNBRITEBMEA (HE5t
EEREABNMERABEMRR) RNMAAH
AR REFRAETE RS E BT
ZE B IR e
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2011 has not included the potential
effect of the share options outstanding as it has an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the year.

15. BRER (8)

(b)

SREBERA (F
AEBE—_FT——FFt_HA=t—HLF
[E ) 15 i 58 2 R B I M 5 e R 1T (R B Ak
BOBEYE REAREHFENERE
ARAFNERETZE -

2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
Profit for the year for the purpose STEEBRERZRMEA ZFEEF
of basic earnings per share (FHT)
(in thousand HK$) 723,452 636,016
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEEE R %
shares
— imputed interest on convertible — A MRES 2 HEFE
bonds 20,635 -
Profit for the purpose of diluted earnings &t & & f% #8 2 F| T A 2 %
per share 744,087 636,016
Weighted average number of ordinary SEERERBFAEAZ AR
shares for the purpose of basic hnEEH & (FR)
earnings per share (in thousand) 7,784,285 7,699,925
Effect of dilution — weighted average BErE - LmRmE T
number of ordinary shares (FH&):
(in thousand):
— exercise of share options — 1T R AR A - 27,232
— conversion of convertible bonds — R A R E S 223,881 -
223,881 27,232
Weighted average number of ordinary ETEGREE 2R R 2 SRR
shares for the purpose of diluted nEFEHE (FR)
earnings per share (in thousand) 8,008,166 7,727,157

Diluted earnings per share EREEEER T

w The effect of dilution for the year 2011 is less than 0.01
cent.

9.29 cents il * 8.23 cents Il

* —E——FFRZEEZELRO0.0MY
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BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. X -BMERRE
The Group Py
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold Lottery  fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction-
buildings  improvements machines  equipment  machinery vehicles  in-progress Total
HENE B %8
HEgT 1 EH E#RE  BERHR A& ERIR ait
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Cost A&
At 1 January 2010 R=%-%%-f-H 22,429 23,444 105,997 40,165 69,177 10,880 - 272,092
Additions AE = 6,504 12,930 4,887 44,231 2,198 64,016 134,772
Exchange realignment SHERE 52 385 2,465 595 1,609 245 - 5,821
Disposals and write off HERME - - - (1,199) (17.439) (810) = (19.447)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 R=E-FF+=A=+-BR
“5—-%-f-H 22,951 30,333 121,392 44,448 97,585 12513 64,016 393,238
Avrising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBARMES - - - 32 4376 - - 4,408
Additions HE - 1,775 23,593 2874 89,680 1,788 1 129,881
Exchange realignment SHERE 1,120 1,058 5,922 1,446 4,760 593 3123 18,022
Disposals and write off M & R - - - (1,559) (23,139) (1,983) - (26,681)
Reclassifcation BifH R = = = (2,52) 69,834 - (67310) -
At 31 December 2011 R=B--£+Zf=t-H 24,01 43,166 150,907 44,117 243,09 1291 - 518,868
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 January 2010 HZ5-%5-f-H 1,854 9,211 45,519 25,214 30,141 3,665 - 115,664
Charge for the year ERHR 513 2805 20626 4717 26,848 1,861 - 57,390
Disposals and write off iHE R - - - (979) (17,.211) (409) - (18,659)
Exchange realignment SHERE IE 82 1,060 m 701 79 - 2,236
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 R=F-FF+=fA=1+-AR
“3——%-5-H 2410 12,118 67,265 29,223 40,419 5,196 - 156,631
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAAMES - - - 6 670 - - 676
Charge for the year FENR 538 4,998 21,613 4736 47,164 1,985 - 87,034
Disposals and write off N & R - - - (1419) (21,502) (1,348) - (24,269)
Exchange realignment SHERE 118 298 3,282 739 1972 27 - 6,646
Reclassification ENNE - - - (12 m = = =
At 31 December 2011 RZB--5+Zf=1-H 3,066 17414 98,160 33,013 68,995 6,070 - 226,718
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2011 R=§--Ft-A=1-A 21,005 25,752 52,747 11,704 174,101 6,841 - 292,150
At 31 December 2010 RZE-25+-R=+-A 20,541 18,215 54127 15225 57,166 1317 64,016 236,607

The net book value of motor vehicles held under a finance lease
was HK$639,000 (2010: Nil).

Note: All leasehold buildings are situated outside Hong Kong and are held
under medium term leases.

The Company

The Company has no property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

1 OO REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #12R E R A7

B ERES N #FHE 2558 2 R FEA639,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 17. THERAREZAMHEANR
The Group & E
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cost A
At beginning of the year REH] 38,863 38,063
Exchange realignment SNEE 38 2 1,718 800
At end of the year NGRS 40,581 38,863
Accumulated amortisation E-E £
At beginning of the year R EF ) 2,760 1,943
Amortisation for the year REZHH 941 775
Exchange realignment HNEE 73 B 129 42
At end of the year NS 3,830 2,760
Net book value BREFE
At end of the year NGRS 36,751 36,103

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights are
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases.

At 31 December 2011, bank loans of approximately
HK$36,585,000 (2010: HK$58,140,000) were secured on
leasehold buildings and land use rights for the carrying values
of approximately HK$18,263,000 (2010: HK$17,792,000) and
HK$31,981,000 (2010: HK$31,220,000) respectively (note 38).

The Company
The Company has no prepaid lease payments on land use rights
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

AEEREAEL R T HMERENESLRNE
BES B BEERE -

R—_B——F+-_F=+—H BHH
36,585,000 7t (==& — & £ : 58,140,000/
TL) ZRITE R REE 5 54 418,263,000
B (ZE—ZTF:17,792,0008 ) &
31,981,000 &£ (=& —F 4 :31,220,000
Bz HMEEF R L E B EERR (K E
38) °

KA F

ARAIRZE——F+=-_A=+—HBIEELH
FREZBANEAONR(ZZE—TF £E)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REWE
The Group & E
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
At beginning of the year RE ) 1,159 962
Fair value gain A EREE 138 174
Exchange realignment SNEE 38 2 57 23
At end of the year NGRS 1,354 1,159

The investment property of the Group is situated outside Hong

Kong and held under medium term lease. It is held for rental

purpose. The investment property of the Group was revalued

as at 31 December 2011 on the open market existing use basis

by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional

valuers (2010: by the Directors’ estimation under current market

conditions).

The Company

The Company has no investment property as at 31 December

2011 (2010: Nil).

AEBEZEREMEMREBEIN XD HESR
BAE FRREERA® NEBZKENER -
E—— 4+ - A=+—BABILIEEMFKERA
BENEERAARAFMSEHREEMEE (=
T-TF HEFRTGRAMEZMG)ET

Bl

KA H

ME(ZZE-—ZF:8)-

ARARAR-_TE——F+_A=+—HAEERKE

19. GOODWILL 19. B&
HK$'000
FET
Cost R AR

At 1 January 2010 R-E—ZFTF—H—H 1,694,266
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 48) WEEHI B AR FTE & (ff7£48) 8,000

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZE—ZEF+_A=+—HRK
—E——%—H—H 1,702,266
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 48) Wz B BT /B8 A RIFREE A (M7 aE48) 726,530
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H 2,428,796
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+A=+—H 1,702,266
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

19. GOODWILL (continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill arising

from acquisition in investments of lottery business.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition in investments of lottery business by reference to
the cash-generating units’ value in use and determined that
such goodwill has not been impaired. The recoverable amount
for the cash-generating units in relation to the lottery business
was determined based on value-in-use calculations, which use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering the operation periods ranging from
10 to 15 years of the businesses with discount rate of 16.55%
per annum. The discount rate used reflect specific risks relating
to the businesses and the growth rate of 3% is in line with the
forecasts adopted by the lotteries industry.

In the opinion of the management, the lotteries industry in
China will grow along with its economy in the coming decades
and remains as the main contribution to the good causes
which benefit the general public in China, and is similar with
the lottery history of other countries of the World. As a major
participant in the lottery industry in the PRC over 5 years, the
Group possesses an in-depth knowledge of the industry. The
management believed that the projected cash flows based on
financial budgets/forecasts for periods ranging from 10 to 15
years are reliable.

The goodwill is included in the lottery business segment
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

19.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

BE(E)
BEZERERRUBREERB 2 RERE
EZEE-

BERAKEZEFBE AEEE2RASESL
BEUZzEREEFGEREBREREBZKE
FELAMEBEZAKOSE WEELZHERER
B-BYRXEKFRcRSELEMN 2 RES
B NREBEEAEEMEE - Z D EARB N
EEEMETRETFETAFERKEEH M
BRERELEZRERERA  HREF16.55%
ZEBBRRGTE - FER 2R R QR EXTEE M
ZEERE M3%2BRRTINAFXETEM
Rz BA -

BEEERR PREERITENRRE T FHEL
BRSER UREERSETEZZ SRR &
BHPEAR SHREEYEENERMEL K
SEHERRTEYEXIECEBADE HAR
ETEME - -ERERE REVMBRE TR
AEZTEETAFHEARSREEBASE -

HEREEEYBRRINEMBEZ R REL D

%
A e

>
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BB | OR KA (

For the year ended 31 December 2011

&)

E=F——F+=A=t+—ALEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B &EE
The Group b
Deferred
Computer  development Operating Technical Long term
software costs right know-how contracts Total
BERE &l
e RA& - ERAE RBAH &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost A&
At 1 January 2010 R=E-SF5—-f—-R 9,827 23,914 31,819 58,823 - 124,383
Exchange realignment SMNEBE 228 556 740 - - 1,524
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 WZZE-3F
TZA=t-HBR
—Z-——%-f-H 10,055 24,470 32,559 58,823 - 125,907
Addition NE - - 24,390 - - 24,390
Avrising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBARRES 44316 - - - 170,732 215,048
Exchange realignment SHEFE 490 1,194 1,588 = = 3,272
At 31 December 2011 RZZB--F
+=A=t-H 54,861 25,664 58,537 58,823 170,732 368,617
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 23 # 8 R &
At 1 January 2010 RZF-Z4-F-H 5,690 9,030 - - = 14,720
Exchange realignment MERZ 133 210 - - - 343
Charge for the year FRMk 667 6,527 - - = 7,194
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 WZZ-%F
+ZA=t-Ak
—2——%-f-8 6,490 15,767 - - - 22,257
Avrising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBARRES 4,062 = = = = 4,062
Charge for the year FAMB 2,159 6,846 - - - 9,005
Exchange realignment SNERE 316 769 - - - 1,085
At 31 December 2011 RZB--F
+ZA=t-H 13,027 23,382 - - - 36,409
Net book value R RE
At 31 December 2011 RZB-—-%
+=A=t-H 41,834 2,282 58,537 58,823 170,732 332,208
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-%%
+-A=1+—H 3,565 8,703 32,559 58,823 - 103,650
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20.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (continued)
(a)

Computer software of carrying value of approximately
HK$41,834,000 (2010: HK$3,565,000) is the intangible
assets acquired and possessed by the lottery business.
The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

Deferred development costs of carrying value of
approximately HK$2,282,000 (2010: HK$8,703,000)
represent expenditure incurred by the Group on
development of computer software and related technology
for the lottery business of the Group in order to meet with
the market development and the specific requirements of
the lottery business and its individual customers.

The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Operating right of carrying value of approximately
HK$58,537,000 (2010: HK$32,559,000) represents
expenditure incurred by the Group on obtaining an
operating right for supplying the system and equipment
in a lottery centre. The operating right contract has been
renegotiated during the year 2011 with partial additional
payment and expiry date has been extended to 20 July
2018. The operating right will be amortised on a straight
line basis over six years starting from the year 2012.

The long term contracts represent operating right contracts
acquired in business combinations (Note 48) and are
measured initially at their fair values on the acquisition
date. The directors have determined the fair value of
these contracts with reference to a valuation which is
based on multi-period excess earning method given by
an independent professional valuer. The contracts have
definite useful lives and will be amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years from the year 2012.

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

20. EREE (&)
AEE (&

(a)

BR M {8 4941,834,0008 L (=T —ZF:
3,565,000/ 7T ) 2 BB AT E XK
KEREENEREAE BV EERE
WEAIAFR WiRGAAIAFER =+
T

BRI {H 492,282,000 T (=T — T 4 ¢
8,703,000/ 7T ) Z IEIE R B AN B A K
BEAETRAMESEE FEEBKREMER
BEENREER BEEZEKHAEEHE
G REBEEABROAL -

SmEERBRETAER LIRMEH
AMER=EtEREE-

B TH {& #958,537,000 T (— B — T 4 :
32,559,000 7T ) < 4 & 1 B AN S E Bt
BRREERLRERFREEZLEL R
FTELZRAY KERSHBIBIMIKE
REZZE——FEFHE HHPAEHE=T
—N\FLtAZtH -LEEKE_T—=F
RAFHRIRERE#E -

KHEIS RN EB A 6 (HiRE48) AT &
MEPRENKRBRABRZ AAEFEZRLE
e BEERSEMBUEXMGLEMEG
TUZHREBRERANESEEZ HEER
EETREENZARBE -BREHEAR
MEAERASEH A T —F#£K
hEt AL B BISE=10F #E8H -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 20. ML EE (B)

The Group (continued) REE (&

(e) Technical know-how of carrying value of approximately (e) BRME(EA58,823,0008 L (=T —TF:
HK$58,823,000 (2010: HK$58,823,000) represents 58,823,000/ 7T) 2 H T E P M E 36 A
the technology, technical information, know-how and BEBHEIAZEEER 2 EM AAR
experience in relation to the lottery business injected by a BoBEFMBLRER -TTHFREREER
joint venture partner. The useful life shall cover the joint aEH mMeagHEaEmMERR LKA %
venture period which shall continue in effect until the BHTBRRR (UREERE) AINAK
termination of the joint venture agreement or the joint BEHR-BZ2RE BRINEFIAHEEER
venture partner ceases to be a shareholder, whichever AEAFEH AmesFETRENR-

is the earlier. The Directors opined that the technical
know-how is with indefinite useful life and is tested for
impairment annually.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policies, the Group RERASEZSHBE AEEEREEAER
has assessed the recoverable amounts of operating right, long AEETELCER RAGORRMENME
term contracts and the technical know-how based on value- AREIeRE - ZAEERNERE B EL RS
in-use calculations, which use cash flow projections based on NEETAFEBKER O VBEEREEY
financial budgets approved by the management covering the six- ReRETEA  ERTF16.55% 2 B K E -
to fifteen-year operation period of the business with discount Fir {58 A 2 B 3R 32 [ B B 36 75 5 B 2 5 FE R B - 1
rate of 16.55% per annum. The discount rate used reflect 3N ZEREDNFEERMER 2TEA -

specific risk relating to the business and the growth rate 3% is
in line with the forecasts adopted by the lotteries industry.

The Company RATF
The Company has no intangible assets as at 31 December 2011 RARARRZBE——F+_A=+—BUEEEFE
(2010: Nil). BE(ZZE—ZTF:E)-
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 21, AIHEEMEE
The Group
TEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET
Unlisted investment, at cost EEMIRE  AE 44,000 -
The unlisted investment represents the Group's cost of FEMHREEAEER —HEPBEBEAKILZ
investment in a private enterprise fund established in the FLECEESMMIRMZKA - AR R 2 IEET
mainland China. It is measured at cost less impairment at the BEZEBEANBEZGHEEERE RNARES
balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value REREAEMAEEALE  WEZFRER
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are HEBHURKAHBRBREZ AEEEZ RIS
of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. HEHE-

The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the near future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

22. RMIBAR 2R

The Company

AAT
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted share, at cost FE LT AR 291,309 291,309
Impairment losses BEEE (127,000) (127,000)
164,309 164,309
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE s /B X R SR IE 3,733,635 2,829,433
Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts REIRRERE (66,000) (66,000)
3,667,635 2,763,433
3,831,944 2,927,742
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W Bt /&8 2 Bl R IE 200,000 200,000

Amount due to a subsidiary

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed term of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors, the amounts of HK$3,733,635,000 (2010:
HK$2,829,433,000) will not be repayable within 12 months of
the balance sheet date and are accordingly, classified as non-
current. The remaining amounts of HK$200,000,000 (2010:
HK$200,000,000) and HK$Nil (2010: HK$88,907,000) are
repayable on demand. The amounts due from subsidiaries of
approximately HK$2,248,576,000 (2010: HK$2,059,503,000)
were impaired. The amount of allowance for impairment
was HK$66,000,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$66,000,000). It is assessed that a portion of these
receivables is expected to be recovered. All other balances
of amounts due from subsidiaries are neither past due nor
impaired.

FE AP 88 2 ) 5R0A

- 88,907

W ERHEARRIEAEET &8 R
EIETENH-EFRAB " 3,733,635,000%
T (=—FT—F4:2,829,433,000/8 7T) 2 1B
BrEREERBRNREARNERZE Ao ER
JEmE - 8 T~ £ %8200,000,0008 L (=T —F
£ :200,000,000870) REB T (ZTE—FF:
88,907,000 L) BRERKEE - EWH B A
B Z FRIE#92,248,576,00008 T (-8 — T4 :
2,059,503,000 L) ERE R ——F
+TZ A=+ — B8R EE# /66,000,000 T
(ZZE—F4%:66,000,0008 7T ) - BRIFTE &
HAZ e MR IE — 265 T UR[E] © BT A L fh 8 Uz Bf
BRRIRIBEHYEO S RE-
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MHEBR=ME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

F+-B=t-RALFE

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, has a 50%

interest in a joint venture, Happy Sun Technologies Ltd and its

subsidiaries (together as “Happy Sun Group”). The following

amounts represent the Group’s 50% share of the assets and

liabilities as at 31 December 2011, and sales and results of the

joint venture for the year. They are included in the Group's

balance sheet and income statement as follows:

23. REELENESR
AEBBEBEZENMBARTES

% Happy

Sun Technologies Ltd& EK B A A (KB A
[Happy Sunfc@|)50% 1z NS BEAEAE
BhZAYCEN—_ZE——F+-_F=+—8H
ZEERBE URKFEHEREERS0%E
moAESBEEMALEBEEERBER R KA

R BT

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE 126,806 116,641
Current assets mBEE 122,816 99,935
249,622 216,576

Liabilities a&
Current liabilities mEAE 11,793 8,270
Net assets EEFE 237,829 208,306
2011 2010
e —z-T5
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Income A 93,178 68,685
Expenses 53 63,646 49,611
Profit before taxation B X A1 4 A 29,532 19,074
Taxation TiIE 5,025 3,961
Profit after taxation SRl 24,507 15,113

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest

in the joint venture, and no contingent liabilities of the venture

itself.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 23. ReghxmEs (&)
At 31 December 2011, the Group’s share of the joint ventures' RZZE—ZFF+_A=+—H AEEREDTTA
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BHAEHADhEaERERRENKERS
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: REWT
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Land and buildings 43 R T
Within one year —F R 846 477
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF (BREEEMTF) 568 -
1,414 477
Details of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities, which RZZE——F+-_A=+—H AKBEZFEH
are unlisted and limited liability companies, as at 31 December FEZEGER (RFLTREREEAR)NFE
2011 are as follows: IAE

Particulars of

Place of Principal issued share
incorporation/ activities and capital/registered Effective
Name registration place of operation capital interest held
BRITRE
=L HEMAY A FEXEBRREERE HEMERFE Fris B
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 4 ordinary shares of 50%
HBEXHE in the PRC US$1 each
R B TR B R ARBREBEIFTLZ
HEFABERER ORI ARAA PRC Investment holding US$12,000,000 50%
a3 in the PRC 12,000,000 7T

R BEETREER

RNNERIR R ERER AT PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
H in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T

R EETREER

Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB89,180,000 50%
ERXEFNABEZERAR H equipment in the lottery A K #89,180,0007T

market in the PRC
RAEBYEMBIREZSR

B
24. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 24. EERS
Statutory deposits are the deposits in various exchanges AERERNE R GMREEAB AR E
and clearing house relating to securities and futures dealing BEEEFEINBNIRE -

businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION
The Group
(a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

25. EEFE

rEE

(a) EWMREEHEEE (&HE)

Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease
payments on

Allowance for land use
impairment rights and Other
of loans buildings on Revaluation taxable
and other business of temporary
receivables  combinations properties differences Total
ERAHRR
THERER
B3R BFZEAEN
AW ER NRFMEZ At RS
AESRE NAERE BfENE ENER &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2010 WZZ-%5—-F-H 1,535 (640) (3,650) (43,003) (45,758)
Attributable to changes in tax rates (note 12) ~ FiEREE (L
(Hit12) - - - (76) (76)
Exchange realignment SHERE - - (85) (556) (641)
Charged to the consolidated income statement 745 & MR A #
(note 12) (Hiz£12) (1,535) - - (11,877) (13,412)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZ-FE+-A=T-HR
“2—4%-8-H - (640) (3,735) (55,512) (59,887)
Attributable to changes in tax rates (note 12) ~ TRBEEL (H#12) - - = (5) ()
Exchange realignment MHEHE - = (183) (841) (1,024)
Chirped to the consolidated income statement 747 & Mas & A 8
(note 12) (1) - - - (9,322) (9,322)
At 31 December 2011 R=B--£+-A=t-H = (640) (3,918) (65,680) (70,238)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have been offset in

HREEEBRZIME HETERERERE
E/(Bf)EREFEGERE 125

accordance with the conditions set out in HKAS 12. The HIGHEE 2IREGEEERBERCE

following is the analysis of deferred tax balances shown in IEFIEA R DT AT
the consolidated balance sheet:

2011 2010

—E——fF —ET-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (70,315) (59,933)

Deferred tax assets REFIBEE 77 46

(70,238) (59,887)
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The Group (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in

respect of the following items:

25. EEH IR (&)
AEM (&

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

(b)y EERBEEE(BE)UARRATEREE

TR

2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Taxable temporary differences FERTE Ry = 2
— accelerated tax depreciation —INRFR I E (13,617) (8,975)
Deductible temporary differences AT R R
— decelerated tax depreciation —RRF BT E 6,780 3,163
— others —HAth 56,476 56,515
Tax losses HRIBEE 265,453 205,223
315,092 255,926

Notes:

(i) The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the

current tax legislation.

(i) Tax losses of approximately HK$114,769,000 (2010:
HK$65,844,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in the
PRC would expire in the fifth year commencing from the year the

loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately HK$150,684,000
(2010: HK$139,379,000) arising from the Group’s other business
segments in Hong Kong do not expire under the current tax

legislation.

The Company

The Company has no temporary differences as at 31 December

2011 (2010: Nil).

(i) BERATHE AMRESZET TSI

(i) AEBRPREEEBEIEAZHEBELY
114,769,000/ 7T (—ZZ —Z 4 : 65,844,000/8 7T )
BEELBEFERTEREER  MBERTH
P AEER BB Z EMER S IATE L 2 FHIBEE
18#9150,684,000/8 7T ( —ZF—2Z 4 : 139,379,000

BL)AETEEH -

RAF

ARAIR=ZE——F+=_A=+—BUEEL

ZER(ZE—ZTF :8|)-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

26. INVENTORIES 26.

(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise:

(a) IANGREERBERZFERRE:

The Group
rEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JR# % 91,794 111,859
Work-in-progress ER G 5,333 3,226
Finished goods BUK SR 19,837 23,708
116,964 138,793

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
expense and included in the Group’s profit or loss is as

(b) BMRAEMIAIARER BT 2FEHR
DTN -

follows:
The Group
rEME
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Restated
F5
(Note)
(K1)
Cost of inventories sold (note 9) HETFEZHA (HiE9) 567,103 614,777
Cost of services provided T 1R 4 BR 75 2 B 72X 100,418 56,373
Cost of sales/services rendered HEFTIRERE 2 RA 667,521 671,150

Note: Due to typo errors, the costs of inventories sold and services
provided were inadvertently reported as HK$189,746,000
and HK$481,404,000 respectively in 2010. Accordingly the
comparative figures were restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES

27. BWE S KRN

The Group
AEE

2011 2010
—ZT——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Margin client receivables, net FEW 7 R B P BR FUF R 2,285 4,497
Other client receivables, net JE W5 EL At 2 B BR FOF R 1,709 1,199
Broker receivables JE s A 42 AR 5K 140 131
Amount due from clearing house JE s 4% B P AR 5K 582 2,064
Loan receivable JEUWE K 1,267 1,478
Loan interest receivable JE W5 & R AR 392 391
Trade receivables — Lottery business FEWE 5 RN — R RET 918,427 858,238
924,802 867,998

Margin client receivables are repayable on demand, bear interest
at prevailing market rates and are secured by clients’ securities
listed on the Stock Exchange with market value of approximately
HK$7,255,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$21,882,000).
No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin client receivables as,
in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of securities
margin financing and broking.

The settlement terms of other client receivables, broker
receivables and amount due from clearing house are one to two
days after the trade date or are repayable on demand. The age
of these balances is within 30 days.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 160 days to its trade customers.

The trade receivables of HK$21,678,000 (2010: HK$20,766,000)
have been pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

BRAREPEFRNERKEE URTHS
MEEE - BEP AR R LM HES(E
RER RN -_ZT——F+-_A=+—HHHME
497,255,000 7L (=& — = 4 : 21,882,000/
) EERRENBLFIRBMERELHER
HE - BREDITEE DA BIR A I E R W T
B E PR ZIRE AT

JE U HL At 3 P BR SR B MK AR A0 R AR e R WK A P
FRRZEFRP/RH AR -—EMRIRN ERE
BRI TR REK B30RA

EERARERBESERZEEERERAEM
FoAEE-—RETEHEFIOEIORZEE
H o

21,678,000 7T (=& —Z 4 :20,766,000/8

) ZRKRE SEREEM TRIT (EREAEH
ER—RRITEEZER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZ——

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of loan receivable, loan interest receivable

and trade receivables — Lottery business is as follows:

F+-B=t-RALFE

27.

FEWE SRR (8)
EERER BRERFIEREREZSER-FER
EBOREDTAOT :

As at 31 December 2011
R-ZE——%+-RA=1+—H

Loan receivable Trade

and receivables

loan interest - Lottery
receivable business Total

ERERR EWES

EWEXR B —
FE KREK &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Three months or less =EALAT 589 533,980 534,569
One year or less but over three months —FRATE=EAMN E - 351,886 351,886
Over one year —FHE 1,070 32,561 33,631
1,659 918,427 920,086

As at 31 December 2010
WZZE-—ZF+_-_H=+—H

Loan receivable Trade

and receivables

loan interest - Lottery
receivable business Total

B E T R EWE 5

EKER BR—
PSS WEEK &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T FET FET
Three months or less =EAAT - 548,537 548,537
One year or less but over three months —FHATE=@AMKE = 299,893 299,893
Over one year — & E 1,869 9,808 11,677

1,869
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
HK$70,126,000 (2010: HK$70,275,000) were impaired. The
amount of the allowance for impairment was HK$70,126,000
as of 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$70,267,000). It is assessed
that a small portion of these receivables is expected to be

recovered. The ageing of these impaired receivables is as

follows:

27. BRESKRN (&)

HE-_T——%+=-A=+—H"#70,126,000
BT (ZZE—Z4:70,275,0008 L) 2 EKZ
SEFREHRBE- R_TE——F+_A=+—
B REREKIEAT0,126,0008 T (—E—F
% :70,267,000% 70) - &L FF {4 1% - TBEAEE » FE
We SR I8 7 T W [B] » 52 55 B IR 1B FE IR BB RO BR R
il NE

2011 2010

—E——F —ZET-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Over one year past due B EAER —F 70,126 70,275

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
HK$48,098,000 (2010: HK$27,483,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of
these receivables is as follows:

HE-_ZT——F+_-H=+—H " #)48,098,000
BT (ZF—Z4:27,483,000/8 ) ZEWE 5
BRRESHAENRRE - ZFRIBERZ EL
FHRRERNBLIRS 2SR FIBENER
M

2011 2010

—E——fF —ZET-TF

HK$000 HK$000

FETT FET

Three months or less past due BEA=EAHIAT 11,240 10,238
One year or less but over three months BH— S AT EBRB=[A

past due 34,567 14,701

Over one year past due BERHEE— 2,291 2,544

48,098 27,483

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

EERR MAEHEMEKREZRFEREBE T
R AE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

27. BRESKRN (&)

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and RERREREEZSHOT :
doubtful debts are as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January R—HA—H 70,267 69,779
Exchange realignment SNEE 8 2 81 33
Impairment loss recognised B R EEE 12 455
Uncollectible amount written off AT Y5 [2] 5% T8 Hif 55 (234) -
Impairment losses written back VEREY SE=E - =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 70,126 70,267

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

28. UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS
Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines
and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the directors, all utility and other deposits are
neither past due nor impaired.
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29. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. EHRERH b EWFIE
The Group The Company
AEE ARAH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF —E——F —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Prepayments and other receivables T8 R TE B A A 8 Y R IE 617,709

The above balances as at 31 December 2011 represent
prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project related
prepayments, staff advances, sales of other assets and other

receivables.

As of 31 December 2011, other receivables of approximately
HK$11,306,000 (2010: HK$10,969,000) were impaired.
The amount of the allowance for impairment was
approximately HK$11,306,000 as of 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$10,869,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly related to those which were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a small portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, the remaining prepayments and
other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

430,876 - 2

PR T ——FF+ A=+ —HZAERIER
HEBX N ZEHRE ¥EHBBBEREK
HBT R HEHMEERE M EKRA-

MW-—ZT——&+-_fF=+—8" EtEkZKES
#911,306,000/8 7T (—=Z—Z4F : 10,969,000/
TIBHRE- R_FT——F+=_A=+—H"
BEBERIE A %11,306,0008 L (=2 — =
£ :10,869,000/8 7t ) ° & Bl H 35 5 E 2 FE K
BHXEHBAVRERR mMERETEBEHR
a] U [B] /)N 56 53 IR IE o

BEERR BT 2B FAKEMRKFIREE R
M TERE-

The Group
rEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January ®—HA—H8 10,869 11,038
Exchange realignment 4N BE ) B 528 256
Impairment loss written back A EERE (41) (425)
Uncollectible amount written off HEE TR W Bl £ 58 (50) =
At 31 December R+-=—A=+—H 11,306 10,869
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

31.

30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 30 BREREARENEZERMEE
OR LOSS
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Listed securities held for trading: BEEEEZ LTES:
Market value of equity securities listed BB LTMRAEFSR 2TE
in Hong Kong 6,928 8,514
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid FIERAZBHFONRAAREDNRES BB ARER
prices in an active market. MHHEABTE -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented BABRRANBHECEREENKLLEEY
within the section of operating activities as part of changes in — 82 NERBEERERTEELESEH L
working capital in the statement of cash flows. —&HH e
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through RABREANBHECEMEEZANESE
profit or loss are recorded in other gains/(losses), net in the PRER TR R AR M (BE)F
consolidated income statement (note 5). H (M45E5) ©
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 31. RERMBITHEER
The Group The Company
rEE ARQH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--%  -T-THE  -®--§  -T-TF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET
Pledged bank deposits B | ERITIF K 10,976 45,302 - -
Cash at banks RITRE
— general accounts ——mRERP 462,757 232,400 76,167 644
- segregated accounts —BIERF 12,704 14,687 - =
Cash in hand FHERS 2,581 1,825 - =
489,018
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 31. RERBITEK(E)
The bank deposits of HK$10,976,000 (2010: HK$45,302,000) 10,976,000 7t (= Z — T 4 : 45,302,000
have been pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities ) ZBITEREERTRIT FRRNEEER
granted to the Group other than those in segregated accounts. —RIBITEE (RBLERFERIN 2 ER-
Cash and bank balances include the following amounts ERE RBITERP - BETIARRARNEE
denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional B (BN T ) AONE HE5 51{E #) 5088
currency, HK dollars:
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
‘000 ‘000
F For
Euro BT 5 5
Malaysian Ringgits 5 115 161
US dollars e 22 19
Renminbi AR 261,414 224,651
Japanese Yen H & - 62
Singapore dollars s T 4 4
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose RireRenERMs RekRNEeEBYEE
of the consolidated statement of cash flows: T3I%IE:
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FETT
Cash in hand FHERE 2,581 1,825
Cash at banks — general accounts RITRE——REP 462,757 232,400
465,338 234,225
NON-CASH TRANSACTION 32. kREXRSH

During the year, the Group purchased a motor vehicle
amounting to HK$639,000 under a finance lease (2010: nil).

FRN-AEBEIREREHERE —#WEE639,000
BT (ZE—ZTF E)ZRE-
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HE T ——F+-A=1+—HILFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Number
of shares Amount
R EE 8
‘000 HK$000
FHR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.VIBTZEER
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 R—-_Z—ZF—HF—H-
and 31 December 2011 —ET-EFF+RA=1+—HEK
—E——F+ZA=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR:
At 1 January 2010 R=ZZE—ZFF—H—H 7,590,175 75,902
Exercise of share options 1T{E R AR 177,500 1,775
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H 7,767,675 77,677
Repurchase of shares (a) fEE (@) (48,450) (485)
Exercise of share options (b) T IREWD) 33,500 335
At 31 December 2011 R=—ZB——%+=-A=t+—-AH 7,752,725 77,527

(a)

During the year, the Company repurchased 48,450,000
shares from the market at the price ranging from
HK$0.420 to HK$0.475 per share for a total consideration
(including expenses) of HK$21,273,000. The repurchased
shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares. An amount equivalent to the par value of
the shares cancelled of HK$485,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium and expenses paid on the repurchase of these
shares were charged to share premium of HK$20,788,000.

During the year, 33,500,000 share options were exercised
by the eligible option holders at their respective exercise
prices for a total cash consideration of HK$26,146,000,
resulting in an issue of 33,500,000 new ordinary shares. All
new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the existing shares.

1 2 O REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #12R E R A7

F RN R Al B 5 48,450,0008% A%
B BN T E%0.420% 7T £0.4755 T
2 #R1E4E21,273,0008 7t (B H
Y) BEEZBRNDELETHE AAREE
TRAEmMBREZERG ZEE —%£4H
LR Ak SH IR 1) (B 2 & ¥8485,000% 7T
EHRREEMNERZEANER FE -5
EZERMDRBROEERESHZE N EE
K& 520,788,000 7T

F 33,500,000 BB E B ER
ERAEANRERTEETE BBESNRE
526,146,000 T » LA BU 3 7733,500,000
B EBIR-FIBFANETZHERRKRE
EFEHERERNEZBER S -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Group's share option scheme was adopted by the Group on

22 November 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Group to grant share options to executives and employees
of the Group and other persons who have made contributions to
the Group as incentives and/or rewards for their contributions to
the Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share options to
the eligible participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine. Share
options granted should be accepted within 30 days from the
date of offer. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, save that such price will not be less than the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of approval and adoption of the Scheme provided that the
Company may at any time seek approval from its shareholders
to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under
any share option scheme(s) of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised share options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent Non-executive Directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

34.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

BT E
AEER_ZETE_F+—-A-+_BRMLXE
B BBt &) ([%AH81))  DAm B E AR K
EHEMZAEBTRAEREEAREAMA
TREBRE - ARG R R R E SRR A
KEM B AR PIER 2B/ -

REZE EEGURZAEMERZAER
DEATREBEREAZEESTSTEE 2K
BB - IR ERERNELN R HAELF308 A
B NI MBS - AR A BT ERBR
RRARAZMH1.008T 2 KE-

BREZTEEHEFSERE  ENSER: ()
BROREL AR (BEREXER)EHIMEA
WERLMBZUME: DROHEZEZRRHA
HAAEEXPEBRIMERMERLARZ
FHRTE: ROBRNEE (AR ERE)

BT ERIZ & 5T 8 Jo AR 2 B E A7) H Al 8 B 4 1
SR H 2 BB A T 2 MM EE LR
TEEBERKRAZFEERARAZEH
TTIRAR10% » AR B A AR RIRERE KRS S KA
RUERZBREEN AR RILEEHNE WRE
BEBBEITRMZ10% Rt & & #RER -
S AR R AN X R E A B AR AR AT B PR 2 BB AR
B(EERBEZEFIDARATER BEFEH BX
MABITEZBRE) T EFEERN-

REBERHBERER B2 EA12E A HE (2
ERHER)  FREZERAD A EM M
BREFIARTEINGCERALTZEBRE (R
FEO TR B RESH & R 1T B B ) JE 1T (R B
MEETRAFETZABRNDARE  TF8E
BREEASETRMNDZ1% - AR EZRER
BYFATEEREZCBREZAEBAROD SR
RHEBARRBEZETRA0N%LEEES
725,000,000 7T - Al MAK AR R B RRELH#
i
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

F+-B=t-RALFE

The period during which share options may be exercised will be

determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no

share options can be exercised more than 10 years after they

have been granted. There is no general requirement that share

options must be held for any minimum period before they can

be exercised. The Scheme will expire on 22 November 2012.

The following table discloses movements in the Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2011:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

34. BRERTSE (F)
Exgn 2 EMNBEREBRBZITEMR 1ERE
BRAER R B HE T 10F R R TT6E - SRTEE
BB R AT L B8 B T A 2 S R IR 3 AR A
—MHAE ZT BN =T —=—F+—A=+=
SPEYE

TREBZHUZEH

BE-F——F+-A=t—ALFE:

Number of share options (000)

BREHA (7))
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees options share period  01.01.2011 year year the year the year the year  31.12.2011
(note ) (note ) (note i)
RZB--F
RZB--% =
BRE -B-B FREBE EFAEREZ Sqr=F]
ERA RAAH ERAEE TS WATHE  ARER  EHEN  FARE  FATR ERAN HARE
(Hiiti) (Hiiti) (Hietii)
HKS
AT
Employees 08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-07.12.2012 157,000 22,000 - - (9,000) - 170,000
E&

30.09.2010 0.740 04.10.2010-29.09.2012 17,500 - - - (10,500) - 7,000
17.06.2011 0.734 20.06.2011-16.06.2013 - - - 110,000 (14,000) - 96,000
08.11.2011 0.554 23.11.2011-07.11.2013 - - - 119,000 - - 119,000
Other eligible participants 08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-07.12.2012 22,000 - (22,000) - - - -

EAERZEAL
196,500 22,000 (22,000) 229,000 (33,500) - 392,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2010:

34. BRERTSE (F)

TREERH 22D

BE-F-—FF+-A=t+—ALFE:

Number of share options (000)

BREHA (7))
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees options share period  01.01.2010 year year the year the year the year  31.12.2010
(note ) (note ) (note iff)
RZF-%F
R-2-8% =y
BRE -B-B fRERE SRERE =t-H
BRA RAAH BRITEE TS WATHE  ABER  EHEE FRRE FATE ERAN HARHE
(Hiti) (i) (i)
HKS
AT
Employees 20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007-08.07.2010 16,000 - - - (5,000) (11,000) -
E&
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007-07.08.2010 10,000 - - - - (10,000 -
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008-30.10.2011 5,000 - - - (5,000) - -
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-07.12.2012 182,500 30,000 - - (55,500) - 157,000
30.09.2010 0.740 04.10.2010-29.09.2012 - - - 70,000 (52,500) - 17,500
Other eligible participants 20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007-08.07.2010 20,000 - - - - (20,000) -
EaER2EAL
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007-07.08.2010 5,000 - - - - (5,000) -
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-07.12.2012 94,000 - (30,000 - (42,000) - 22,000
332,500 30,000 (30,000 70,000 (160,000) (46,000 196,500
Notes: ks

(i) Such share options were re-classified between the category of
“Employees” and “Other eligible participants” during the year as a
result of the change of the title of the relevant participant.

(i) The closing price of the share immediately before the dates of
grant on 17 June 2011 and 8 November 2011 was HK$0.730 and
HK$0.570 respectively.

(iii)  The closing price of the share immediately before the date of
acceptance of grant on 4 October 2010 was HK$0.740.

(i) MBAREHEZEALIRUEE ZFBEEERFA
EMEE] BEMBAER2EAL HEHRSE-

(i) EBEREBH T —FA+EHRZZE
——F+—AN\BAZBRHKTED I %0.730%8
7T % 0.57074 7T ©

(i) BEEEMARHBEREZBEH N _F-—FF+
A B AT Z B 4 (B R0.740/8 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

34. BRERTSE (F)

(a) Details of share options exercised during the year: (a) FRITEBREMNFE:
2011 2010
= —3-%%
Market value
Exercise per share at Proceeds Number of Proceeds Number of
Exercise date g 4! price  exercise date received  share options received  share options
R4
e BRME FERE BREHE e A EREse
HKS HKS HK$'000 ‘000 HK$ 000 ‘000
BT BT FEr B FET 4
26 January 2010 to 2 February 2010~ —E—F&—F-+ARZE 0300  0.850-1.010
3 - - 1,500 5,000
18 January 2010 to 30 April 2010 0.900  0.900-1.230
- - 87,750 97,500
14 April 2010 0.790 1.130 - - 3,950 5,000
6 October 2010 to 10 December 2010 0.740  0.740 - 0.800
- - 38,850 52,500
7 January 2011 0.740 0.850 7,770 10,500 - -
13 January 2011 to 7 February 2011 0.900 0.910
8,100 9,000 - -
21 June 2011 to 4 July 2011 0.734  0.730-0.740
10,276 14,000 - -
26,146 33,500 132,050 160,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise FRTEBERENITER 2 NETHR
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.818 BAEER8ISEL(ZZE—ZF : 5K
(2010: HK$0.939) per share. 0.939% L) °
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BREZHEERMEFLHITHEE
share options
Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITEERES R &8 & H G B T
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BITEBHT
follows:
2011 2010
—e——% —z-2f
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

per share share options per share share options

BRPHYTHEE BRERE SKRFHTEE B ESE

HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

E T F 17 BT Fn

Outstanding at 1 January R— A — B RARITE 0.886 196,500 0.890 332,500

Granted B 0.640 229,000 0.740 70,000

Exercised BEATfE 0.780 (33,500) 0.939 (160,000)

Lapsed B R - - 0.655 (46,000)
Outstanding and exercisable at R+=A=+—HB R AKT{E

31 December MAIATE 0.751 392,000 0.886 196,500
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b)

(0

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-E——G+-A=+—HILFE

34. BRERTSE (F)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b)y BREZHERMNEFLGITEEE)
share options (continued)
The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had RZE——F+ZA=+—HERTIEZ
exercise price of ranging from HK$0.554 to HK$0.900 BE R 4E 2 1T B N F0.554/8 7L £0.900/5
(2010: ranging from 0.740 to HK$0.900) and a weighted T (ZZT—F4F: /4 F0.740/8 7t £0.900
average remaining contractual life of 1.34 years (2010: BIT)  MMEFERTEFEHHER1.34
1.92 years). No option was cancelled during the year. F(ZTE—TF:1.92F) FRLEFH
{3 fa] S AR 4 o
The exercise in full of the outstanding 392,000,000 (2010: BIEANRRIRE 2 EARNERE  BHETER
196,500,000) share options at 31 December 2011 would, —TE——FE+ - A=+—HEATEZ
under the present capital structure of the Company, 392,000,00017 (==& —Z 4 : 196,500,000
result in the issue of 392,000,000 (2010: 196,500,000) 17 ) i A% 4 1% 8 B 2£77392,000,0004% (=
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before T —ZT £ :196,500,0008% ) BB INIR 10 - B3R
expenses, of approximately HK$294,570,000 (2010: © R BRI F X Al 49 45294,570,0007 7T
HK$174,050,000). —Z—F 1 :174,050,00087T) °
Fair value of share options and assumptions (0 BREAAEBEREBR
During the year, 229,000,000 (2010: 70,000,000) options F 7R 229,000,000 (—F — T4 :
were granted and are fully vested immediately. The 70,000,00017 ) & A% # 7 £t 3 B B 2% 25
estimated fair value of the options granted during the year BE - FAREZBREZ AREBEMTOR
was approximately HK$12,007,000 (2010: HK$4,965,000). 12,007,000 7T ( == — =4 : 4,965,000
BIT) e
The fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes option ARBEDERAM R —FRAMEEEE
pricing model. The weighted average inputs into the model BIGHE « Z B 2 MEFHBABLT :
were as follows:
Share options granted
B ERE
Date of Date of Date of
offer to grant  offer to grant  offer to grant
options options options
8.11.2011 17.06.2011 30.09.2010
B AR RE B MR E B R AE
EHELHASE ZEARLEAH EYRLEAES
R=ZB——F RZT——F RZB-ZF
+—ANH ~A++tH HB=+H
Share price i (& HK$0.527% 7T HK$0.737% 7 HK$0.710/8 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.554/8 7T  HK$0.734/%8 7T  HK$0.740%E 7T
Expected volatility T8 HRR 18 49.22% 41.53 - 41.94% 53.22%
Expected option life (in years) — TEHABE A #EHAMR (4R +) 0.25-0.50 0.25-0.50 0.25-0.50
Risk-free-rate 4 3 R ) = 0.14 -0.15% 0.07 - 0.12% 0.24 - 0.28%
Expected dividends TEHAAR B 2% 1.42% 1%
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the
previous 260 days. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Company recognised share-based payment of
approximately HK$12,007,000 during the year (2010:
HK$4,965,000).

35. RESERVES

The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 46 of
the financial statements.

The Company

Share redemption

34. BRERTSE (F)

BREAAERBRR (&

TR HRR M Th 5 B A A R BRE R B E£260H
ZEENEETE ZERMAZAMER
ERBERERE 2 s NI EE M 17
REIRTREEZZEMBE-

FA ARABBARG AT HRED
12,007,000 7T (=& —F 4 : 4,965,000
BIL) e

FEME
AEBAEERBEFELREREEZD
SHERVBRRFIAZGERREH R
HE27-

ARH
Share-based Proposed
payment Contributed  Retained final
reserve surplus profits  dividend Total
DR 3 A £

REZRE  BABR  REEA  RHERR At

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TET TET TET TET TET

17,758 199,605 2,530 33,083 2,677,148
= = 191,729 = 191,729

= = = = 146,025
4,965 = = = 4,965
(8,606) = 8,606 = =
(8,035) = = = =

= = (92) (33,083) (33,175)
= = (27,031) = (27,031)
= = (43,608) 43,608 =

6,082 199,605 132,134 43,608 2,959,661

- - 164514 - 164514
- - - - 25,811
- - (485) - (20788)
- - - - 119358
12,007 - - - 12,007

(1,888) = = = =

= = 33) (43,608) (43,641)
= = (37,446) = (37,446)
= = (61,910) 61,910 =

Premium
RH%E
HK$ 000
FET
At 1 January 2010 WN-ZE-F5-F—-H 2,424,014
Profit for the year FRET =
Issue of new shares BT 146,025
Recognition of share option benefits at R IZAA B £
fair value BRERRN =
Share options lapsed BREXK -
Transfer on exercise of share options 715 B I & &8 ¢ 8,035
2009 proposed final dividend paid BRAZZEENFRERIRE
(note 13) (H##13) -
Interim dividend (note 13) RERE (HiE13) -
2010 proposed final dividend “I-TERFRIRE -
At 31 December 2010 and RZB-FF+-A=+-HK
1 January 2011 “T——5-8-81 2,578,074
Profit for the year FRET =
Issue of new shares BT 25,811
Repurchase of shares EERIH (20,788)
Convertible bonds - equity component, A[#fEEH-E&ZHBS
net of transaction costs MBI ZHA =
Recognition of share option benefits at B IEA B{Ez EH
fair value BREREN =
Transfer on exercise of share options BT B EM & 1,888
2010 proposed final dividend paid BRAZ=F-2FRERIRE
(note 13) (H#13) -
Interim dividend (note 13) RERE (Hi13) -
2011 proposed final dividend “T—ERHERIRE -
At 31 December 2011 R=%-——%+-A=1+-H 2,584,985
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

35. RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 2(q).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in note 2(r)(iii).

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the
Group and the nominal amount of the shares issued
for the acquisition, less dividend, capital restructuring
and further investments in existing subsidiaries.

Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2(v).

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

35. f#fE (&)
(0 REHERAH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

K155
BRIDBEERZERE -NWN\—FBR
ERADEFAOGEARE -

BEXREFE
EABOFEBEREHBREOSAR
BB HTEAREER D MmEE -

iR 35 1
A A S AR IR R S 2(q) R Al
BB 25 PR AR 2 & R B T R R
DEETARBMBETARKRESZHE
HAPD Z B

LRGZ B2 E R

VA B 4 3215 5RO0R 2 8 4 1R AR IR B R
2(n)(i Bt A B {0 Sz T SRIA MR A 2 &
ARRBRZ AR R ES BRI
ERAHRTREZERERBEZAR
B

HEIE R
FRlFEEENBARARANEEKES
B 2 B fn T {8 B2 51 4 B 1 B 1T AR 2
HEREZEZ®E BREKKRE BEASE
HERBEHNBAR 2E—SRES
5 o

EL#E
AR RE R E RN R 2 B
BRAEEZBELZR ZHEHE
REME2(V) 2 8t BREHE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

35. RESERVES (continued)

(0

(d)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (continued)

(vii) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2011 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends and capital restructuring.

Distribution of reserves

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

the contributed surplus account of the Company is

available for distribution. However, the Company cannot

declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the

contributed surplus, if:

(i)

(if)

the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and the share premium
account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves

available for distribution to shareholders as at the balance

sheet date were as follows:

35. f#fE (&)

(0

(d)

REEERBW (&

(vii) BAEE
ARABRBE_ZT——F+ =8
=+ —BZHARERIEREXCAPITAL
Financial Group Limitedf% {7 # A& 2
AEER ERAEEFEEAR
ARKEMBETRO 2 EEREZ =
BHOBHBRREREAARNEMHE-

P IRGEE

BE-NAN—FBREQRFDE (KEFT)
RRBZBABRBIRAED K - AT - i3
EATER  BIARRE AR K 30K (B
B RRBARBRTIER DK :

(i) ARBEREINZMFHIBRBRER
BEIBREMNEAR X

(i ARBEEZAZRBESRALIR
HEEREBBTRAMR D & E R
SEtE®E-

EEZRB ARARBERAHD I T K
RZBHEBMT

2011 2010

—2——F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Contributed surplus SO 199,605 199,605
Retained profits R i A 196,774 132,134
396,379 331,739
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BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

36. TRADE PAYABLES 36. BNESERR
The Group
EE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Margin client payables FE R B P AR 4,576 4,641
Other client payables FE AT E Ath = P BR AR 10,547 13,189
Trade payables-Lottery business EREB SRR - FRED 69,280 53,850
Bills payables-Lottery business ENEE-ERED - 5,814
84,403 77,494

Margin client payables and other client payables are repayable
on demand and bear interest at prevailing market rates.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin client payables and
other client payables as, in the opinion of the Directors, the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of business of securities margin financing and broking.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximate to their fair values.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables — Lottery
business is as follows:

BNTREPEALENEMELRRTIEE
SREFER - WARITHIZH EG S -

MREERARELARRELB RELETY
WETE RSN ERTA - F UL E B
RAREFERRENEMESBER L BES
AR«

PN E 5 R RTBRR — F A HIREFRKEN -

EERRENEIRFRZCEHEREE D AENR

4

L

o

AEBEENESER-—FREBZ Rik D
T

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Three months or less =@AAKIAT 49,239 32,016
Over three months =@A N E 20,041 21,834
69,280 53,850
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE T ——F+-A=1+—HILFE

37. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Other payables and accruals of the Group and the Company are

38.

expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year

or are repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other

payables and accruals of the
approximate to their fair values.

Group and the Company

37.

HitENE
REBRAR TZ,H\@FEHMIE&FEH%(IEE

K8 & BB 5T X

HR - FAREERERRWARIRZRKERE -

EERAEAEBERARRIZEMEMNRERE
AAREZEREEEAABEES -

BANK BORROWINGS 38. RITEE
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank loans IRITE

— secured —BHEA 58,927 96,106
— unsecured — A - 15,360
All due within one year 2HR —FRNEH 58,927 111,466

The bank loans are repayable within one year or when the

facility is withdrawn. These borrowings are used to finance the

lottery business of the Group.

Bank loans of approximately HK$58,927,000 (2010:
HK$96,106,000) were secured by the leasehold buildings and
land use rights (note 17), trade receivables (note 27) and bank

deposits (note 31) of the Group.

The effective interest rates on the Group's borrowings are equal

to contractual interest rates.

The Directors consider that the fair values of borrowings at the

balance sheet date approximate to their carrying amounts.

1 3 O REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #12R E R A7

—FAREERMEREER ZEFEE
WEEBZHEES -

RITEFR
RIEAREE

#958,927,000/# T ( = ZE—Z 4 : 96,106,000/8
L) ZRITEFUNAREB 2 HEEF R T HEA
#E(MIzE17) - BUE SRR (MFE27) REB1TTE
A (HIFE3T) 1R 3 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

38. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
Bank borrowings include the following amount denominated in

a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK

38.

RITEE ()
RITIEE B T FIAR R AT B & ¥ 8 TT A5
BB ZHIA:

dollars:
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
‘000 ‘000
FT For
Renminbi AR 48,320 95,861

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities which
are secured by margin client’s securities with market value
of approximately HK$2,249,000 (2010: HK$7,322,000) and
guaranteed by the Company in respect of the financial services:

REB AT EL2,249,0008 T ( —E—ZF:
7,322,000 0 ) 2 FFREF B HERMIL AR
ARAREERZEBEBREREEEHT

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Floating rate E BRI =
— expiring within one year ——FREm 30,000 30,000

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject
to review during 2012.

—FRERZEEBRAEEFER BER_Z
——FATUAER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 39. MERES

On 21 September 2011, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$1,040,200,000
principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due in 2016 (the
“Bonds”). On 28 September 2011, the issue of principal amount
of HK$816,900,000 of the Bonds was completed (the “Firm
Bonds”). On 7 November 2011, the issue of principal amount
of HK$70,000,000 of the Bonds was completed pursuant to
an option under the subscription agreement being partially
exercised before the closing date of the option (the “Option
Bonds”). On 28 November, 2011, the issue of HK$77,800,000
in principal amount of the Bonds to Kingly Profits Corporation
was completed pursuant the subscription agreement (the “VC
Bonds"”). Kingly Profits Corporation is a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor, a director and
substantial shareholder of the Company. Upon completion of
the issue of the Bonds, the aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds issued is HK$964,700,000. The Option Bonds and VC
Bonds were consolidated and form a single series with the Firm
Bonds issued on 28 September 2011. The Bonds are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

The principal terms of the Bonds are as follows:

(a) Optional conversion

Each bond will, at the option of the holder
(“Bondholders”), be convertible (unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or
after 8 November 2011 up to and including 18 September
2016 into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
with a par value of HK$0.01 each at an initial conversion
price (the “Conversion Price”) of HK$0.6175 per share,
subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Bonds agreement as a result of dilutive
events.

1 32 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #12R E R A7

RZE——FNAZ+—H KARARIRE
HE UNBTR_ZE—AFEHH AeEER
7%1,040,200,000/% 7T 2 6% ] # i% f& 55 ([ &
%)) R=ZZE——FAA=+N\B BEKHE
1778 % %8 /816,900,000 T 2 &% ([ E %
EH]) RZFE——F+—AtRH BEKR
BREBBZETZEEENEEESR LB H
Al & B0 53 17 £ 1 8 17 A & %8 /470,000,000
TRZEH([EBEESF]) RZTE——F+—
AZ+N\B BREKIREREH:ZMBKingly
Profits Corporation 177~ & % 477,800,000
w2 fEE ([RRELEMEH]) o Kingly Profits
Corporation BA AR EEF F EREMETE L
SREBE2EREZ AR RERETESFE B
BITEHF 2 A& #5/5964,700,0007 7T o 1 3%
EHFEERREEBFOLAH WEARZT——F
NAZTNBBITZERESFHEKE R &
FRIMEBHRSMBR AR LM

BEHEZEZ2GFMT
(a) EREMER

BNEFBEBSAEA ([EFFHEAL) 2&
BR-_Z——F+—-ANBHZKRE_F
—RNFEAATN\B (BFEZA)#EHR (K
EED - ERBOWEHEERN BEAR
AEREECOIBTZHBRERAR 15
i ([HRE]) RER0.61758 7T R
BES W 2GR R B E A
SEEMEHRE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
(b) Redemption

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased
and cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed on 28
September 2016 at its principal amount together
with accrued but unpaid interest thereon.

Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may at any time after 28 September
2014 and prior to 28 September 2016 redeem in
whole, or in part, the Bonds for the time being
outstanding at their principal amount together with
interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption,
provided that the closing price of the Company’s
shares for any 20 consecutive trading days, the last
of which occurs not more than five trading days
prior to the date on which notice of such redemption
is published, was at least 130% of the prevailing

Conversion Price; or

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal
amount of the bonds has already been converted,
redeemed or purchased and cancelled, then the
Company shall have the option to redeem in whole,
but not in part, of the outstanding Bonds at their
principal amount as at such date together with
interest accrued to such date.

Redemption at the option of the Bondholders
The Company will, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the Bondholders’
bonds on 28 September 2014 at their principal
amount together with interest accrued to such date.

The Company will also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the bonds their
principal amount as at such date together with
interest accrued to the relevant date for redemption
when there is a change of control of the Company,
or when the Company'’s shares cease to be listed or
admitted to trading or suspended for trading for a
period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

39. WMRES ()

(b) HE

EE ) e
BRIESEAMCED Sk i O
HEFHAR_E-RFALA=-TN
HizEASRBERZFERNHEHE
8] o

B L ] B
ARBAIR_E—NENLA =+ N\E
BER=ZZT—X"FNLA=ZFTN\HA"
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BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 39. ARRESR (B)

At initial recognition, the Bonds are separated into a liability
component consisting of the straight debt element of the
Bonds, embedded financial derivatives consisting of redemption
options, and an equity component representing the conversion
options of the Bondholders to convert the Bonds into equity.
As the Company’s and Bondholders’ redemption options are
considered as closely related to the host contracts, the fair
values of these options, which are determined using Binomial
Tree Pricing Model at initial recognition, have not been
separated from the host contracts, but included in the carrying
amount of the liability component. The equity component is
presented as convertible bonds reserve in equity, whereas the
liability component is classified under non-current liabilities. The
proceeds received from the issue of the Bonds have been split as
follows:

(i)  Liability component represents the fair value of the
contractually determined stream of cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate applicable to
instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion features. The interest charged for
the period is calculated by applying an effective interest
rate of 9.79% to the liability component since the Bonds

were issued.

(i)  Equity component represents the conversion options,
which is determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the
Bonds as a whole.

The fair value of the liability component of the Bonds was
calculated using the discounted cash flow model. The major
inputs used in the Binomial Tree Pricing Model as at 28
September 2011 were as follows:

Share price HK$0.47
Exercise price HK$0.6175
Risk-free rate 0.755%
Dividend yield 2.213%
Credit spread 8.407%
Expected life 5 years
Volatility 67.761%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The share price was HK$0.47 as at 28 September 2011. The
risk-free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong

Exchange Fund Notes Yields as extracted from Bloomberg. The
expected life was the remaining life of the Bonds. Volatility is the
annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded
rates of return on the daily average adjusted share price of the
Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result
in changes in the fair value of the liability component. The
variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value
of the liability component are based on the directors’ best
estimates.

The movement of the liability component and the equity
component of the Bonds for the year is set out below:

39.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

AR ES (8)
RZE——FNAZTN\BZRER0.47THB T
BERBRARKEL2BEBINEESEEREE XK
BT (HMETHE) B AFHAEHFZHTE
HoBEAARATFALAREYREZ EEE
EEREZFEZEEE -

ZEAMAZ EEHABURZ EZ K EEK
BEMOZARERZ -FHEBHBD AREM

Rz BHEEBRRVIBBEERZKEMFIIED -

FRN - BEBFEER) BRI S 2 ESHERF A0
e o

Group and Company

EEBRAEADT
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZET-TF
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FET
Nominal value of Bonds issued FARTZESF2HEHE
during the year 964,700 -
Equity component* (note 35) BB o> (H1i235) (121,743) =
Transaction costs attributable to BEBDEMZRFHEA
the liability component (17,894) -
Liability component on initial recognition R $HERE 2 BEHLD 825,063 =
Interest expense (note 8) MEFRX (K1:#8) 20,635 =
Interest payable JE A FIE (14,953) =
Liability component at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—Bz8EHD 830,745 =

* The transaction costs attributable to the equity component of the
Bonds amounted to HK$2,385,000.

No conversion, redemption or purchase and cancellation of the
Bonds has occurred up to 31 December 2011.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible bonds
based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on borrowing
rate as at 31 December 2011 is approximately HK$798,891,000.

e B 5075 5.2 35 5K 2K 732,385,000/ 7T °
BE_T—F+_A=+—H1t BEFHREW
B I O] ol B B 3 GE 8 o

BREAN—ZE——F+_A=F+—HZEEXRHNH

HAeRenEtB8zARkEFBERO 2L
A 1E#4798,891,000% T °
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BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

40. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 40.

At 31 December, 2011, the Group had obligation under a
finance lease repayable as follows:

MEHEEY
R-F——F+_A=t+—H AKERXRBREH
EETEEMZEHDT

2011 2010
—E——F T -EF
Present Present
value of value of
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease payment  lease payment lease payment lease payment
REHEZHE BEHE SEHESZRE ivicka
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Within 1 year —FRx 109 140 - -
Between 2 to 5 years MEZERF 441 488 - -
550 628 - -
Less: Total future finance charges B AR TS U B 4B R 78 =
Present value of lease payments HezHEE

The Group’s obligation under a finance lease is secured by the
lessor’s charge over the leased motor vehicle. The interest rate
of the obligation under a finance lease is fixed at 2.5% (2010:
nil) per annum. At the end of the lease term the Group has the
option to purchase the motor vehicle at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option.

The Company has no obligation under a finance lease for both
year end dates.
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42.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC
subsidiaries’ employees in the PRC.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED

The Group

At 31 December 2011, the Group has not given any significant
financial guarantees (2010: Nil).

The Company

The Company has issued unlimited corporate guarantee to
a bank to secure general facilities granted to one of the
subsidiaries. None (2010: Nil) of the facilities were utilised by
the subsidiary as at 31 December 2011. The Company has not
recognised any deferred income and the related expenses in
respect of such guarantee, as in the opinion of the Directors,
their fair value cannot be reliably measured using observable
market data and their transaction price was nil.

The Directors consider that the subsidiary is financially
resourceful settling the obligation.

41.

42.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—RLFE

RKEF B

BIKEFEA

AEBERBRIMEIFESA G REERE
ERSEBHERESRABME ([RES
EDZES RE-—HEERIZRESF
o EHZHATNREERAF S Z B S LA
8 WMKIR SR TE £ 51 8l 2 8 SR R R 1R
SR - AEBEEL ZBERFOIARTES
B ES o i

RIBEFHHBEDER  HEIME AR ARTEMNE
REEEZRAEFIAEBLERERES
TE RS FOR R BIME R

B8 ZHKER

KEE

R_ZT——F+_A=+—H AKBETEEK
PBER(ZE—ZF &) -

RAF

ARRERER —RMBLAAE —RERER
—RBTBEHERBLZARER - R _T——F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

43. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2011
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

. RIE
(a)

R-E——F+_A=+—HERENH
HERFAZKRENMEREEDT

The Group rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Contracted for BEET4
— purchase of property, plant and —BEWE WELRKE
equipment 8,685 -
— purchase of operating right —fEEREE 26,585 =
— increase in registered capital of —— B A A Z M & A8 m
a subsidiary 122,120 190,120
157,390 190,120

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

(b)

RZE——F+-A=+—H XAEER
BAAHBEEEHEZ RARENRELS
AT

The Group EE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET

Land and buildings 4 i R AEF

Within one year —F R 25,198 13,694
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF (BEEEMF) 43,267 6,301
68,465 19,995

The Group leases various office premises and warehouses
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years. The leases do not include any
contingent rentals.

The Company

At 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any
significant capital and operating lease commitments (2010:
Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 44, BEHE S z2E2@MIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

REER ST AR ZKREENT

The Group rE
Financial assets SREE
201 2010
-E--% —B-2%
Financial Financial
assets at asset at
fair value fair value
through through
profit Available- profit Available-
or loss for-sale or loss for-sale
held for  Loansand financial held for  Loans and financial
trading receivables asset Total trading ~ receivables asset Total
BRER BBRR
BARE BARE
TEZER HEZER
BE- EXR  AfHE BE- BRR  AHEHE
BEFEE RURE  SREE B KEEEE  RYGE  eREE @5
Notes — HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
H# &% FET FET TE% AT TAT TAT AT
Available-for-sale financial asset A ESREE 21 - - 44,000 44,000 - - - -
Statutory deposits EERS 24 - 838 - 838 - 833 - 833
Trade receivables EWE5ER 27 - 924,802 - 924,802 = 867,998 = 867,998
Utility and other deposits RASEREMES 28 - 4108 - MR - 281916 - 81916
Other receivables EtbEMFE 29 - 269,308 - 269,308 - 243,186 - 243,186
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BBEZRALETEL
profit or loss SHEE 30 6,928 - - 6,928 8,514 = = 8,514
Cash and bank balances RERRTER 31 - 489,018 - 489,018 - 294,214 - 294,214
6,928 2,131,009 44,000 2,181,937 8514 1,694,147 - 1,702,661
Financial liabilities SHEes
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B A EHEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k3 FHT T
Trade payables BB 5 IR 36 84,403 77,494
Other payables and accruals H MBS FIB R FEETRIE 37 114,994 54,159
Bank borrowings RITEE 38 58,927 111,466
Convertible bonds AR B 5 39 830,745 -
Obligation under a finance lease EE& & G 40 550 -
1,089,619 243,119
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES (continued) 44, BEHBE Sz IA (&)
The Company ¥ NN
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BYREWZE
2011 2010
—E——fF T -TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
Other receivables E fib B W GR IR 29 - 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHI B A T IE 22 3,867,635 2,963,433
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTE 31 76,167 644
3,943,802 2,964,079
Financial liabilities SRERE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HBEL L EZEHEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
K it FETT FET
Other payables and accruals H b JE S 3B K BT IR 37 20,363 2,143
Amount due to a subsidiary FES — M B A R K8 22 - 88,907
Convertible bonds AR &5 39 830,745 =
851,108 91,050
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair

value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the

normal course of its business and financial instruments.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance as follows:

(i)  Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to receivables from foreign brokers
and foreign currency deposits with banks. The
Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the above
receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
if HK$ had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the RMB, with all other variables
held constant, the effect on the profit for
the year is immaterial, equity would have
been approximately HK$95,398,000 (2010:
HK$60,273,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating
investments in foreign operations into HKS.

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

45. B RKER

(a)

B b B R

AEBZEBE-—REBBEPLEEH
TAMmPRZEGBRR : T5ER (21
SNERE - A EFEER  REREFE
Ek&kEERRR) EERREREE SR

e AKE T 2 BERAREEE  FF
NE BTS2 A FRAIER - =K HA

SEMBRBABEZNNZEREREK:

(i) TwEmEE
(1) SMNERE

SINGE [ B A5 A B S B AR A 1B Wi B
FARIFHRIRITZIMNEFR 2

E$Tﬂ AP MEL ZEBERE
B AEBNAFERBEFE

A8 R HE BRIt U BR 5R i E A

ZERIMERER

SN RRBEER S CHERBE
EREE AREIEBREF
B SELIIERR - AEHZ
HEXBETBRREALE K8
DRGEYUAREEE - BAR
KB RINE AT R BT AR
fn 2 SMNEE IR A R RPIEE -

REBE_T—F+=A=+—
BIEFE WA THEARBEX
FHE BABES5 % i FT A H i &

BRTE AEERAMZTE
WAREBR: BN EmgEAER
BINEB 2 IR ERE BB L E
EZERARMBLD ML
95,398,000/ L (=T —F4F :
60,273,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)

(1)

)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
foreign exchange risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 5% increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in exchange
rate over the period until the next balance sheet
date. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2010.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
regularly to ensure that the underlying risk is
monitored within an acceptable range. Most of
the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities
are on a floating rate basis with maturity of one
year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
treasury and operating activities. Interest rate
risk arises in treasury management, customer
financing and investment portfolios. Interest
rate risk primarily results from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to the bank borrowings carried interest
at variable rates which are collateralised by
margin client’s securities, bank deposits and
leasehold buildings and land use rights to
mitigate the cash flow interest risk.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates of the PRC and of Hong Kong (2010:
1%), with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease profit for the year and
retained profits by approximately HK$4,038,000

(2010: HK$1,209,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(2) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(continued)
The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 1% increase or decrease in the
PRC and Hong Kong interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

(3)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through investments in equity securities and
the Company's interests in subsidiaries. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.
The Board manages the exposure by closely
monitoring the portfolio of equity investments.
To manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done
in accordance with the limits set by the Group.
The Group did not have significant exposure to
price risk during the current and prior years.

Credit risk

The Group’'s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, listed investments and
other financial instruments. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible to
compile the credit and risk management policies,
to approve credit limits and determine any debt
recovery action on those delinquent receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
for each individual account receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate allowances for
impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

45. MIEEKER (&)
(a) MBEREE (&)
() HEEE(E)
2) B2 rERAALEFE@E
(%)
%i%t@@ﬁ“ﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁ

\%ETEZME&#ME%@
TAMEZFERBR FERE
R E D BIIE ISR 1% T E
BEEFHEE TFEAEAHM
A& IR A Al aE IR 2 F &=
)

(3) ERER
AREBERBABSFRE AR
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B o REE Y EAEERERR

CEERERETEERARK
BHAAERAHRR KNEE
DEHEREEE NEERERAFH
FREEEZEBRRER -2 BRK
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors of the Group consider that
the Group's credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 17%
(2010: 26%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the five largest clients.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29.

Liquidity risk

As part of ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with Clearing House or brokers
and clients. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
regulatory requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

1 44 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR

45. BMIEEKER (&)

(a)

B E B E E (&
(i) EEmE (&)

MR 24 F RERKREEFREE
ARBEEFRZRIT RBERE
ERBIEER BT E AEHE
EERAR AEELEERBREAX
BRI RBEERD -

REEH BRA17% (ZF—F
F:26%) 2 BWEFRALEME
WHREEEREAAEF HAKH
BEETETEERR-

EHRAEERERESER 2AF
¥REMIES AR TaMRIE & E '
WHRIEMEEZ EERRNE -2
b 5T SR M FE27 - 28%29 ©

(iii) mEELmE

ERBERREEB 2 —HD ~AKHE
AERETREREATPH A
REMELZRDESRAR - REE
FHRR EEERAEASZHEE
B ERASBRZERARERERE
EFAERNERREF R mEEE
BEREZETHREKT ARIE
BEZ A - AR E Z BRI E H B
EERDELFRLNETEEREL
BR - ARERA R ETRR SHE
MRS REES ANERIES
MEEBRENEAAREERE A
ENEEHEREARDESCTE -



(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's

financial liabilities, which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and

the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

45. BMIEEKER (&)
(a) HBEARRERZE (&

(iii)

mBELELE (&)
TRITAEESHABERNEFEAD
BT RABMBER (ETABZIHMm
AEBENESRE (BEREOMX
% (B FE)REAE BB E A A
EEEOF BN BEKE)  ARA
SETHEREEGHERANKTR
HAREIS -

Group e
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flows demand 5 years
[ERvA -S|

AR BB —FRAR BBR—F
IREE HRERELEH REREE BFRREEE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FET

2011 —B——fF
Trade payables BTE SR 84,403 84,403 84,403 -
Other payables and accruals H fth J& A< FRIE K FE AT ARIE 114,994 114,994 114,994 -
Bank borrowings BITEE 58,927 60,367 60,367 -
Convertible bonds AR & 5 830,745 1,239,157 57,882 1,181,275
Obligation under a finance lease MEREEK 550 628 140 488
1,089,619 1,499,549 317,786 1,181,763

2010 —2-FF
Trade payables BTE SR 77,494 77,494 77,494 =
Other payables and accruals H i B {5 3R IE R B AT RRIE 54,159 54,159 54,159 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 111,466 116,859 116,859 -

243,119

248,512

248,512 =
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

45. MIEEKER (&)

1 46 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42 E R A7

91,050

91,050

Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MBRAMEZE (&
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) TEBELEME (E)
The remaining contractual maturities of the BREVAMARBRNBEREF;E
Company's financial liabilities as at the balance sheet AAFIEMBEREERNRTEL
date, based on the contractual undiscounted cash B EAER AT
flows, was as follows:
Company VNN
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flows demand 5 years
BaH
[GE:3:0:0) —FRH BBE—F
REE BRERBLE REREE BRREHEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT FET
2011 —EB——F
Other payables and accruals H i &5 FRIH R FE AT RIE 20,363 20,363 - -
Convertible bonds R ES 830,745 1,239,157 57,882 1,181,275
851,108 1,259,520 57,882 1,181,275
2010 —B-FF
Amount due to a subsidiary A~ — RS Bf /BB R &) k0B 88,907 88,907 = =
Other payables and accruals H i B {5 FRIE & B ST RRIE 2,143 2,143 - -



45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %%

For the year ended 31 December 2011

wRME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

45. BIREKRER (&)
(b) ARE
BAREIRZEHBT A
TREBINREER BB W GRS ER
FIReRTE-HEIMRAET=EAN

input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
market for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair value measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not based on

=
=-°

EH

FE—R(EZIER)
misH ARSI AZRE (REHE) &

BERMEINZRANBEFEZEMIA
ZEREBE-ZHEBRIAZAAEZH#E
REAREAEBEAZHAEREFR
EH D8R -

FHSRNERMT :

FRRETIR R B

CRAE TR RS BT 5 AL

CRMIAZRE IMEEERAEHTA
ERAMBEENABEERTSEESH 2

BRI E -

F=H(REZER)
EHALFEERTHRETHEEGEH 2

AREDNBREE

observable market data. BERMETE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—& E=& E=R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2011 —E——F
Financial assets at fair value BRBEEANENE
through profit or loss: ZEREE:
— Listed equity investment — ERARE 6,928 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset: A ESHEE:
— Unlisted equity investment - ERAKRE - - 44,000
6,928 - 44,000
2010 —E-ZF
Financial assets at fair value through BBIEZFZ A LEFE
profit or loss: ZERMEE:
— Listed equity investment — ERARE 8,514 = =

During the year there was no significant transfer between

investments in Level 1 and Level 2.

BE-

FRN BE-RRE-RAZRELEEXR

Annual Report 2011 =& ——44Fif 147



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HEZZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIERAKERE (&)

(c) Estimation of fair values
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price (i.e. level 1 — highest
level).

The carrying values less allowances for impairment
of current receivables and of current payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. Estimated
discounted cash flows at the current market interest

() RDAREMF
EERMERXSZEMTA (MRS RA
HEERBF)2ARE NRELEERZT
BHEET ARBRAZEREEZT
LRERERZEAB(NE K55
ER) o

B 5 78 Ui B 5 2 B BA B A PR R 2 BR T (B 40
BREBBREAAEBZAEMNEE-
BEELEERIAZAAER SRAKRE
THSMEAEZBABERRSRE (B

rate are used to determine fair value for these financial F=R—ZEEFER) -
instruments (i.e. level 3 — lowest level).
46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. EXEMRER

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which includes
bank borrowings, obligation under a finance lease, trade and
other payables and liability component of convertible bonds plus
unaccrued proposed dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity, other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2011, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2010, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a
reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

1 48 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR

ARBEREALEE R BDRENE B LM
BERESEE RIS BB RARK
TR B 2 PR A A R 18 A TR A
A - MERRRAEERR AR LEERE
AR -

AEEBERERBRIRERERERE UER
= AR BRI R T AT BE B < B & B KT 8
R 8 & AR 2R 4F B % AR B2 2 UG T
B YREKERTNE(CHERNRBIELR
o

MEMEE—&K AEEARBHEHEEAL
REREREARBNEE-BIHTE  AKE
REBERESBERRE (BERTEE BE
HEES BNEZERRRE MR RIEARA
MR ES 2 BERD MERFEHERE) - £
REABERD AN OFRIRSREL D
WK FER 2 BRI BIE RFTEBBE

R-ZB——% AEERA_ZT-ZTF2RE
BHABEHERABREARLERABKT - B TR
R BRI R REFAERABIRNY TREREZ
REFIR BITHRG EBERATRR &5
&k HE B ERME -



46.

47.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

46.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

EXREBERE (&)
RZTE——FR=ZZT—ZTF+-RA=+—HZ
BEUKARERLEMT

2011 2010
—B——fF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current liabilities: BB E -

Trade payables FERTE 5 R 84,403 77,494
Other payables and accruals E < FRIB K FE ET IR 114,994 54,159
Bank borrowings RITEE 58,927 111,466
Obligation under a finance lease REHRERS 109 =
258,433 243,119

Non-current liabilities: L 7=4- &
Convertible bonds, the liability component AmRkES 2B ERD 830,745 -
Obligation under a finance lease MEMRSES 441 -
Total debts BEHEE 1,089,619 243,119
Proposed final dividend BEAHARE 61,910 43,608
Adjusted debts KREARE 1,151,529 286,727
Adjusted capital RARER 4,474,904 3,730,500
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio EEFRHCHEER LR 26% 8%

Certain subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and their respective liquid capital
as at 31 December 2011 is in compliance with the stipulated
liquidity requirement imposed by the SFO.

The Company is not subject to either internally or externally
imposed capital requirements.

ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2011, the Group acquired an additional 4% equity
interest of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co. Ltd (“Sinodata”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its non-
controlling equity holder at a consideration of HK$200,000,000
by way of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition,
Sinodata has become a 93.84% owned subsidiary of the Group.
Sinodata is the Group’s principal lottery platform for the Welfare
Lottery in China. Sinodata is responsible for both the traditional
CTG business of the Group as well as spearheading our Group’s
efforts in the extension of its lottery distribution platform to the
electronic lottery distribution business especially mobile lottery
and related games developments.

In June 2010, the Group acquired an additional 5.09% equity
interest of Sinodata from its non-controlling equity holders at a
consideration of HK$258,800,000 by way of cash. As a result of
the additional acquisition, Sinodata became a 89.84% owned
subsidiary of the Group.

47.
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BAR - BEAAEEAFRBEIEEZEELE
TR - BULBEAEEERTSIEER WHEE
AEBBIBELERZEFEBEEETVE
Blr 7 LERFHRYERBRMMER 2 M-

RZFE—ZFFNA AEEREFERE
HEEAKREBLEIS 09%KE KEAE
258,800,000 L LIRS F AT - AR LK
SNREE - B AR EBEHEE89.84% e 2 K
BAae
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48. WK REK
REB——FURENEAR

48. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES
Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2011

As part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market share

of the lottery business in particular, in the area of electronic

lottery, the Group has made investments to extend its electronic

lottery coverage to Beijing, Guangzhou, Tianjin, Shanxi and

Xinjiang provinces. In addition, the Group has also made

various investments to extend its electronic lottery distribution

capabilities to various electronic distribution platforms including

okooo.com. During 2011, the Group has made the following

investments pursuant to such strategy:

ERASBBEREEXEE M S MHERE 2 — 6
D LEREFRERE ASEEELHEER
NKESEFRvEBEZHEEEZILR EMN X
EONARMESE B AEEBTETEIE
KE BEEFHERXE ) ERZEokooo.com
EZEETREFE-R_ZT—F A£EHE
RIRZ R IEEH A TR E -

(i) FIHTGREEZERAA (i) FIHTHREEZERAA
In July 2011, the Group has made an investment to acquire RZE——F+tA AEBELREE
from a third party a 100% equity interest in &I TH & FE=ZFRBERITREESERAD A
E5HBMAFA) (“Feihai”) and related investment for cash ([HRBI)Z2100%kEAER ReKER
consideration of HK$250,000,000. Feihai is an investment 250,000,000 7T - /B RIEEZER QA
holding company which has a 60% beneficial interest in ER—HATBREYRHERTEEALET
a company that is engaged in the provision of services to IRz F ARG 2 AR HEB60%E 25 1 7 ©
paperless and electronic distribution platform for the sales ZERGER T ——FNLATK -
of lottery in China. The transaction has been completed in
September 2011.

(i) XEXRBHEERZA A (i) XEXRBEERZA
In July 2011, the Group extended its paperless and RIZBE——F+ A REREPBEEANLE
electronic lottery platform in the PRC by an investment into FEE AEEER-—BEREBE=FK
a 60% equity interest in KESCREHE AR AR (“Wencai”) BREXCKBHEER AR ([3X3K]) 260%
for a total consideration of HK$250,000,000, from a third f& A #E % - #8K {8 A250,000,0005% 7T © XX
party. Wencai is mainly engaged in the provision of services RZEBHEBRMPEY AR XIBHER
to paperless and electronic platform for the distribution CtEFFERGE - ZEXSER_FT——
of lottery in China. The transaction has been completed in FNATK -
September 2011.

(i) XEEZREEFERA A (iii) XEEZREFRA A

In September 2011, the Group acquired from a third party
a 60% equity interest in X)EZEZEHZ AR A F] (“Piaoyi”)
for a total investment of HK$200,000,000. Piaoyi is
mainly engaged in the provision of supporting services
for lottery sales in China through paperless and electronic
lottery platform. The transaction has been completed in
September 2011.

1 50 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR
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48. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued) 48. WIBRREK (&8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2011 (continued) R-B——FWEBHEAR (&)
(iv) tREBRSRHEFRA A (iv) tREBRSBHEERL A
In September 2011, the Group has invested RZE——FALA AEEBZAREILR
HK$200,000,000 in the paperless lottery platform in China FERRAMEBERAR ([58]) 260%&
by acquisition of a 60% equity interest in 3t R {5 & E 5 % gD RPBRESLLEFEETAKRA
AR AR (“Xinying”). Xinying is mainly engaged in the 200,000,000 ERZEZEBEERFBER
provision of supporting services for lottery sales through BEETLEFEETRIERRRHEIER
paperless and electronic lottery platform. The transaction BoZBERFERE——FNLATK-
has been completed in September 2011.
The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and (v) AT R EMFTIEENE AR 2 AR & E
liabilities of the above acquired subsidiaries as at the REeERERKERSR s AR EERE:
respective acquisition dates were as follows:
Fair value recognised on acquisition
REERERZANE
Feihai Wencai Piaoyi Xinying Total
Fipi XE £5 7 Ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Property, plant and equipment VEN 6 3732 - - - 3732
Intangible assets BV AR 40,254 2,000 48,732 120,000 210,986
Trade receivables EXRE SRR - 8,273 - - 8,273
Utility and other deposits AREEREMES = 5,488 = = 5,488
Prepayments and other receivables BEARE LA 74,496 34,146 110 1,220 109,972
Cash and bank balances RERBITER 3,777 2,639 5,977 - 12,393
Trade payables ERE 5EH (5,492) = = = (5,492)
Other payables and accruals EthERFUER A (53,666) (2,569) - - (56,235)
63,101 49,977 54,819 121,220 289,117
Non-controlling interests FERIER (25,241) (19,991) (21,927) (48,488) (115,647)
Goodwill (Note 19) BE(HiH19) 212,140 220,014 167,108 127,268 726,530
250,000 250,000 200,000 200,000 900,000
Satisfied by: S
Cash consideration RERE 250,000 250,000 200,000 200,000 900,000
The measurement basis for the non-controlling interests is TR ER T EEERIEERERE(L
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate shares of the WHRES A BANEEFEARBEZHE-
fair value of the acquirees’ net identifiable assets.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition Wi LB AR ZASRESTWT
of the above subsidiaries is as follows:
Cash consideration per above Itz RERE 250,000 250,000 200,000 200,000 900,000
Cash and bank balances acquired 2R E RRTES (3,777) (2,639) (5,977) = (12,393)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEDRERECAER
included in cash flows from investing activities B & B HFHR 246,223 247,361 194,023 200,000 887,607
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48. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)

HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2011 (continued)

The goodwill on acquisition of the four groups of companies
represents value obtainable from synergies with the Group
and opportunities for the Group to bring its expertise to the
proposition and access to the region of the Chinese Mainland
that are provided by the above newly acquired subsidiaries.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$108,000 for the
acquisitions. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

The above acquired subsidiaries contributed turnover of
approximately HK$108,500,000 and profit of HK$48,849,000
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011. If
the above acquired subsidiaries had occurred on 1 January
2011, the Group’s turnover would have been approximately
HK$1,911,505,000 and profit would have been approximately
HK$804,364,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2010

(@) In April 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an MOU to acquire the entire equity interest
in a company, Winrest International Limited (“Winrest”),
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$75,585,000. Completion of the acquisition was in
two stages with cash considerations of HK$2,000,000 and
HK$73,585,000 in July and December 2010 respectively.
The Group has obtained controlling interest in Winrest in
the first acquisition. Winrest has a wholly owned subsidiary
established in the PRC which is engaged in mobile lottery
business. Upon completion of the acquisition, Winrest
has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting.

At the date of the first acquisition, the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquired group of subsidiaries was considered as nil
balance, therefore, goodwill of HK$2,000,000 was arisen
as a result of this acquisition. The further consideration
paid of HK$73,585,000 for the remaining equity interest is
then charged to retained profits.

1 52 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR

48.

WEERER (8)
REZB——FHRBEHEAR (F)
WEMARRR 2AEEERNEEESZ R
MIEFTS 2 BE UARREBEBSIALZMM
AR ERFEENEARMREEERTRER
I [ 2 7

AEERBBEEE 2R HKA 108,000 7T °
ZERGUADR YA AREKERZ
THFAXET

B2 —f+t-A=+-BLFE"
LR BEZNBRARAAEREGTRERELH
108,500,000/ 7T K it 71/48,849,0007% 7T * fisf L
BRENBARN =T ——F—A—B%LE A
AEEHRE_T——F T A=+ —HLFE
ZEFEEA £1,911,505,000 7T - s A B
#)7/804,364,0007% It °

REZZE—ZFREMEAAE

(@) RZZE—ZFWHA XRARAZ2EWBAR
RIFI M EME - MBI E =7 WHEWinrest
International Limited ([Winrest | ) 2 %0 i%
$T§%\ ’ Iﬁ%ﬁ%%75,585,0005’§ﬁ o Y hE
MERERTK  DRIR =T —ZTF LA
&+_H X {131 € 1 182,000,000 7T &
73,585,000/ 7T A& E £ E — R IE P
EX 15 Winrest 2 1% il # o Winresti # Bl #
EREFREEEB 22EWBAR X
B UL B BF - Winresti B A S B2 E B A

Al mEWEERAKESFIEARK-

FEE—RIREEE B - FTURBEH B A B4R 2
AFNEE BERIARBEZAALER
REG R B - RIEWEEE 42,000,000
BTZEAB HERFBRAERZZFH
73,585,000 ;LB ) B R B )% A 0Bk -
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48. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2010 (continued)

(b)

In July 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement to acquire the equity interest
in Dynasty Max Limited (“Dynasty”), from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$100,000,000.
Dynasty has 80% entity interest in a subsidiary established
in the PRC which is engaged in development of new
mobile value-added service for lottery business in the PRC.
Completion of the acquisition was in two stages with
cash considerations of HK$6,000,000 and HK$94,000,000
in July and December 2010 respectively. The Group
has obtained controlling interest in Dynasty in the first
acquisition. Upon completion of the acquisition, Dynasty
has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting.

At the date of the first acquisition, the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquired group of subsidiaries was considered as nil
balance, therefore, goodwill of HK$6,000,000 was arisen
as a result of this acquisition. The further consideration
paid of HK$94,000,000 for remaining equity interest is
then charged to retained profits.

At the balance sheet date, the above acquired groups of

subsidiaries have not yet commenced their lottery business

and therefore they did not contribute any revenue nor profit

to the Group during the period from the respective dates of

acquisitions to 31 December 2010.

If the acquisitions in respect of items (a) and (b) had been

completed on 1 January 2010, there would not be any change

to the total Group's revenue and profit for the year.

48. WIBRREK (&)

R-Z-—ZFWEBKHEQR (&

by REZZ—ZFLA ARRZZENE
AR Wk M = 77 W BB Dynasty
Max Limited ([Dynasty | ) Z B A#E 2 - 3
% X & A100,000,000/% JT ° Dynasty# &
P B AK 37 /O BT B 2 R HU80% AR AR A 25
ZARNFEREEEB 2N FHILER
o WEO MERERTR  HRIR=ZF—F
FERAR+ZAXNHEEHK(E6,000,000/8
7T 594,000,000 7T o 7N £ B 7E 8 — IR K
% HR BR 15 Dynasty 2 1% i 5 o T B M i I -
Dynastyl X R A S E 2 AN E A A - B
BERARBEEEAR.

FEE—RIREEE B - FTURBEH B A B4R 2
AFNEE BERIARBEZAALER
RIE AR Bt - B TE WS EE 46,000,000
BTZEAB HERFBRAERZ S FH
94,000,000/ st X B B & B & A H Bk ©

RESER LB RBEHRE R BHER W ARRIEY
EXB MHSEBNEBREAE_T-ZF
TZA=+—B BRI RBAREE T REM
WA 20 A

W@k bIBEWEBEEER=-ZE—ZF—-—H—H
SERR « 7 17 B 42 M T B A £
CECE
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49. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(a)

Details of the Group's significant transactions with the
following related parties during the year are as follows:

ML RS K&

49.

(a) AKBERAFEGHEUTHE TETEXN
X5 MEMT

2011 2010
—E——F —ZET-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Director: B

Balance due from the Group JE W A 55 E £ 3R 141 141
Subscription of convertible bonds REARRES 77,800 =
Convertible bonds interests A AR5 2 AILE 1,206 -

Related companies: ) YNCIE
Sub-letting income AHEBA 2,874 3,051

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group’s ordinary course of business
or at terms agreed by both parties. The balance due to
a director is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment term.

During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents Directors’ remuneration and
those of senior staff as stated in notes 10 and 11. The
Directors’ remuneration is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance,
responsibilities and experience of individuals and market
trends.

50. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

E=Z(BRBYFATES)RA LR
HINAREB BRI BREFRIRET B
EZIFRET BNEFHA/EER %
BT I 4 45 E R O -

by RMEFER TBEEASFHEWE
10k zEEREREIZHMe - &
EMeBFHEESe2RAARE BE
REHLARTSBEERE -

50. LbE B F

ETHRBFEENDBRUTEEAFEZZS
AR BN REAREEAARFERBEFELE
BRI B E -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation. The reclassification has no effect
on the Group's results and financial position for the current and
prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and which have not been adopted in

51.

BB RME (&)

BE_T——Ft-A=+—RALFE

CEAEERERZER HEARZET
REEZEE

BEAUBRRFEBS BESHAASER
MATRBE_T——F+_A=+—HBLF
JE 15 AR A R B R A B 75 Sk A ER AR 2 (BT
MERMRE:

these financial statements:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes
— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (2011), Investments in associates and
joint ventures

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee benefits

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these amendments
and new standards on its financial position and results of
operations. However, they are not expected to have a material
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the

Group but may require additional disclosures.

on or after

RT5 8 H

RZEBARZ

BT HBER

BEMBRERAETR 2B @I H: 1 July 2011
BEE-EEeHEE —ET——F+tHA—H
BEMBREEAFETR 2B @I E: 1 January 2013
BEE-HKHeHEERERERE —T—=%—HF—H

BEABEERFE12% 28] FTBH 1 January 2012

—EERIE : WEIHEE E —ZT——F#—HF—H
BEREERFE IR ZER]  BEHRERZ 25 1 July 2012
—Hih2EKEEEZ L7 —T——-—F+A—H

ER R ERNER 2R M TR
2V -HEcREERSHAE

1 January 2014
—ET-—NE—HF—H

BEMBREEAFI105  Z6 P BRE 1 January 2013

—2—=F—HA—H
ERBMBREENENIR BETH 1 January 2013

—2—=F—H—H
BERMBEREERE 125 BERNHEMEE 2 1 January 2013
T 2 —E—=%—H—H
BBV BREEAFI35%  AREFE 1 January 2013

—E2—=%—H—H
BERGENE27R (=T —F) - 1 January 2013
BB R —ZE—=F—H—H
EB S ERE28H (T ——F) - 1 January 2013
BRERBEABIREEDE —ZE—=%—H—H
BB ERIE1R (ZF——F) - 1 January 2013
RE®RA —T—=%—H—H

BEMBREEAFSR T HE 1 January 2015

—E-—AF—HA—H

RE BB REF GRS BT R EANEE
PR RCEEEZZERE - A BHAZ
SRR RMER TG HAEE 2 P HARRHAL
EEREBREATE A RAEHRBEIME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

52.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

BE-T——45+-A=t+-ALEE

5. XEMIBARZEHE

KRR Z—ZE——F+-_A=+—HB2ZETEHW

2011 are as follows: BARFEET:
Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE
=L SE RS, R A it B TEEBREXBE HEMEARFE s B S
REXCAPITAL Financial Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 Ordinary shares 100%
Limited REBRERHS in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETREZER 197,400,856/ *
BREEIETZEAR
REXCAPITAL Financial Hong Kong Investment holding 25,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Investment Limited BB in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
HEeREBEERAA REBBETREEKR 25,000,000/% *
FREE ST EBR
REXCAPITAL Asset Hong Kong Investment holding, 5,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Management Limited BB provision of advisory of HK$1 each
HREEEBERARAA and fund management  5,000,0004%
services in Hong Kong FRAEIBLZLAR
REBETREZR R
R R ESEERY
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of 2 Ordinary shares of 100%
Management Limited BB administration services HK$1 each
HECEBEERRAA for group companies in 2% BREE ST 2 LB
Hong Kong
REBREERAIRH
1THURT
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Money lending and 2,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
HREERRADA &5 investment trading in of HK$1 each
Hong Kong 2,000,000
REBETESRKR BREEIETZEAR
REEE
REXCAPITAL Securities Hong Kong Securities dealing and 150,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Limited BB margin financing of HK$1 each
HEBEHFER AR in Hong Kong 150,000,0004% - FHEE
REBETESFEER BT & B
fFRRE
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding HK$115,880,500 100%
(Guangzhou) Co Ltd H in the PRC 115,880,500/ 7T
BMERIRERR QA R BUEITR & 2R
Shenzhen Sinodata PRC Provision of lottery RMB35,560,000 93.84%
Technology Co Ltd H machines and software AR #35,560,0007T

ARYIT BB B
ARAF

1 5 6 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR
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52. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 5. FEMB ARl 2B (8)

(continued)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE
Z8 SRR LR A i B TEEXEBRREXNE HMEARFE Fris B s
R B R R B RS PRC Provision of maintenance RMB2,000,000 93.84%
BRAA H service for lottery AR #2,000,0007T
machines in the PRC
R BEREY KRGS
R 7%
Shenzhen Kingsail Software PRC Production of lottery RMB20,000,000 100%
Tech Co Ltd H machines in the PRC AR #20,000,0007T
RIS IR i RPBEEYER
BRAA
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd ] in the PRC AR #30,000,0007T
AT HERYERE R B TR B ER
BRAT
Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery PRC Provision of lottery RMB 10,000,000 100%
Technology Co Ltd H printing service AR#10,000,0007T
LRERHEHRERAA in the PRC
P B R it % 3 Dl AR 75
Guangzhou Latech PRC Production of RMB 10,000,000 90%
Technology Co Ltd il lottery machines AR %10,000,0007T
BMTEEHRRAR DA in the PRC
RAEBEEYE
Beijing Lohowin Marketing PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 1,280,000 60%
Co Ltd H marketing business AR#1,280,0007T
JE REER 5 8 A R in the PRC
BRAF R BETR R KR
BECES
R 18R A4 {5 B BT PRC Provision of marketing RMB10,000,000 80%
BRAA H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007T
business in the PRC
R BREYRERH
3% R %5
RN THEFR BB R A A PRC Lottery distribution and RMB10,000,000 100%
H marketing business AE%10,000,0007T

in the PRC
R BT RALXE
BEE L
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52. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. XEMB ARl RS (8)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRA/
=L SRR LR A i B TEEXEBRREXNE A E s B
TREZEFHREARDA  PRC Investment holding RMBS5,100,000 100%
H in the PRC AR #5,100,0007T
R BETRERER
Elottery Vision (Beijing) PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB1,000,000 50%*
Technology Co Ltd B added services for AR #1,000,00070
TR (bR ) B lottery business
ARRA in the PRC
R B YR EBRE
FHIBERTS
EREEGYBRHEERAR  PRC Provision of mobile value-  RMB4,000,000 50%*
H added services for AE#4,000,0007T
lottery business
in the PRC
KB R E B R
FHIEERS
ErRAEASRBRARAR  PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB1,010,000 50%*
H added services for AR¥1,010,0007T
lottery business
in the PRC
KB R E B R
FHIEERS
W08 5 T % B AR AR B PRC Provision of mobile value-  RMB2,000,000 50%*
BEREEAA H added services for AR #2,000,0007T
lottery business
in the PRC
RABEIRE R EBRMYE
FHRIZERS
REXKEBRARA A PRC Provision of services RMBS5,000,000 60%
H to paperless and AR #5,000,0007T

1 5 8 REXLot Holdings Limited 25 #42p E R AR
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53.
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52.

BB RME (&)
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TENBLRZFE (8)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BITRA
=L SRR LR A i B TEEXEBRREXNE A E s B
AEESGHBRERRAT PRC Provision of services RMB5,000,000 60%
H to paperless and AR#5,000,00075
electronic lottery
platform in the PRC
NP BERELCEF
FETARMRH
ERERRARKAERAA  PRC Provision of services RMB1,000,000 60%
H to paperless and AR #1,000,0007T
electronic lottery
platform in the PRC
NP RERCEF
YETRRERSE
RINTREE HERR A PRC Investment holding and RMB 100,000 100%
H provision of services AK#100,0007C
to paperless and
electronic lottery
platform in the PRC
REZER KA E
ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ{t %_,7'_7F/7F
FaRE R
& These investee companies are regarded as subsidiaries as the Group & B 7K 5E [B] A 1 I R B 572 HHREETE

can exercise control over their financial and operating activities.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at 31
December 2011 and 2010 at any time during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion
of the Directors result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

During January 2012, the Company repurchased 10,825,000
shares from the market at the price ranging from HK$0.465 to
HK$0.490 per share for a total consideration of HK$5,169,375.
All repurchased shares were cancelled in the same month.

During March 2012, certain bondholders exercised their
conversion rights to convert an aggregate principal amount
of HK$427,900,000 convertible bonds due 2016 at the
conversion price of HK$0.6175 per share resulting in an issue of
692,955,465 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
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Five Year Fin

(@]

ncial Summary

The following is a summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2011, which have been

NTRAEEEEZE"Z——F+-_A=+—HILAE
FEZEE BERABERE ADNVRRIHEHRERN

prepared on the basis set out in note 2 to the financial statements. H2RTH c EERR -
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-RILEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—2—-% —ZT-%TF C—ZTTNE —TTN\F C"TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET T FET T
Turnover EERE 1,809,127 1,614,328 1,272,069 1,173,000 412,661
Profit before taxation B 0 Al i A 806,784 680,131 450,237 342,215 220,010
Taxation A (54,317) (35,677) (34,082) (51,414) (26,369)
Profit before non-controlling interests Kk 5 ZF 22 % # 25 A % Al 752,467 644,454 416,155 290,801 193,641
Non-controlling interests RS (29,015) (8,438) 8,426 (23,160) (56,953)
723,452 636,016 424,581 267,641 136,688
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B——-f -T-TF C"—TTHhFE —TT\F "TTtH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FET FET
Total assets HMEE 5,738,638 4,108,975 3,791,475 3,348,203 2,605,574
Total liabilities BmAafkE (1,201,824) (334,867) (344,804) (287,648) (164,171)
Total equity B 4,536,814

Note: As a result of the change in accounting policy for turnover in 2008, the
figures for 2007 have been restated for comparison purpose.
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3,774,108 3,446,671 3,060,555

Hiat: BRE_FEN\FERBBEXEZE

TETLFEHFERLENUELER

2,441,403
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